
 

Manor City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 10/21/2020 - Page 1 

 

 

 

Dr. Larry Wallace Jr., Mayor 

Deja Hill, Mayor Pro Tem, Place 5 

Emily Hill, Place 1 

Maria Amezcua, Place 2 

Dr. Christopher Harvey, Place 3 

Danny Scarbrough, Place 4 

Vacant, Place 6 

City Council Regular Meeting 

and 

Joint Meeting with Planning and Zoning Commission 

Wednesday, October 21, 2020 at 7:00 PM 

Manor City Hall, Council Chambers, 105 E. Eggleston St. 

AGENDA 

This meeting will be live streamed on Manor Facebook Live 

You can access the meeting at https://www.facebook.com/cityofmanor/ 

CALL REGULAR MEETING OF CITY COUNCIL TO ORDER AND ANNOUNCE A QUORUM IS 

PRESENT 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Comments will be taken from the audience on non-agenda related topics for a length of time, not to exceed three 

(3) minutes per person. Comments on specific agenda items must be made when the item comes before the Council. 

To address the City Council, please complete the white card and present it to the City Secretary prior to the meeting. 

No Action May be Taken by the City Council During Public Comments. 

CALL PLANNING AND ZONING MEETING TO ORDER AND ANNOUNCE A QUORUM IS PRESENT 

CITY COUNCIL TO ENTER INTO JOINT MEETING WITH PLANNING AND ZONING: 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The City Council will now convene into a joint executive session together with the Planning and Zoning 

Commission pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551 Texas Government Code, in accordance with the authority 

contained in: 

- Section 551.071 Consultation with Attorney and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional 

Conduct - Regarding pending litigation, specifically Civil Action No. 1:20-cv-1017, Manor RV Park, LLC 

v. City of Manor, et al pending in the United States District Court Western District of Texas Austin 

Division. 

  

1

https://www.facebook.com/cityofmanor/


 

Manor City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 10/21/2020 - Page 2 

 

OPEN SESSION 

The City Council together with the Planning and Zoning Commission will now reconvene into Open Session 

pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551 Texas Government Code and take action on item(s) discussed during joint 

Closed Executive Session.  

ADJOURNMENT OF JOINT MEETING WITH PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

CONTINUATION OF REGULAR MEETING OF CITY COUNCIL 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION   
 

The City Council will now convene into executive session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551 Texas 

Government Code, in accordance with the authority contained in: 

 

- Section 551.071 Consultation with Attorney - Regarding subdivision fees 

OPEN SESSION 

The City Council will now reconvene into Open Session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551 Texas 

Government Code and take action on item(s) discussed during Closed Executive Session. 

REPORTS 

Reports about items of community interest on which no action will be taken. 

A. Youth Justice Action Month Report 
Submitted by: Mayor Wallace Jr. 

B. Economic Development Report - CAYSA 
Submitted by: Mayor Wallace Jr. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. Conduct a public hearing upon a rezoning request for 24.81 acres, more or less, out of the 

Sumner Bacon Survey No. 62, Travis County, Texas, and being located at 9910 Hill Lane, 

Manor, TX from Light Commercial (C-1) to Multi-Family 15 (MF-1). 
Applicant: Kimley-Horn & Associates 

Owner: 9 Sunny Partners, LP  

Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Assistant Development Services Director 

2. Conduct a public hearing upon a Concept Plan for Presidential Glen Commercial Subdivision, 

three (3) lots on 5.4 acres, more or less, and being located at 13600 US Hwy 290 E., Manor, 

TX.  
Applicant: Kimley-Horn & Associates 

Owner: West Elgin Development Corporation 

Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Assistant Development Services Director 

  

2



 

Manor City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 10/21/2020 - Page 3 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

All of the following items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be self-explanatory by the Council and will be 

enacted with one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless requested by the Mayor or a 

Council Member; in which event, the item will be removed from the consent agenda and considered separately. 

3. Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve the City Council Minutes of the 

October 7, 2020, Regular Meeting. 
Submitted by: Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary  

4. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the acceptance of the September 2020 

Departmental Reports.    
Submitted by: Thomas Bolt, City Manager 

• Police – Ryan Phipps, Chief of Police     

• Development Services – Scott Dunlop, Asst. Dev. Services Director 

• Community Development – Debbie Charbonneau, Community Dev. Manager 

• Municipal Court – Sarah Friberg, Court Clerk 

• Public Works – Michael Tuley, Director of Public Works 

• Finance – Lydia Collins, Director of Finance 

REGULAR AGENDA 

5. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an engagement letter for litigation legal 

services.  

Submitted by: Thomas Bolt, City Manager 

6. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the Second Amendment to Development 

Agreement (Manor Heights).  
Submitted by: Thomas Bolt, City Manager 

7. Consideration, discussion and possible action on an ordinance rezoning 24.81 acres, more or 

less, out of the Sumner Bacon Survey No. 62, Travis County, Texas, and being located at 9910 

Hill Lane, Manor, TX from Light Commercial (C-1) to Multi-Family 15 (MF-1). 
Applicant: Kimley-Horn & Associates 

Owner: 9 Sunny Partners, LP 

Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Assistant Development Services Director 

8. Consideration, discussion, and possible action upon a Concept Plan for Presidential Glen 

Commercial Subdivision, three (3) lots on 5.4 acres, more or less, and being located at 13600 

US Hwy 290 E., Manor, TX. 
Applicant: Kimley-Horn & Associates 

Owner: West Elgin Development Corporation 

Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Assistant Development Services Director 

9. Consideration, discussion, and possible action to waive Chapter 10, Exhibit A, Article II, 

Section 22(d)(1)(i) to waive payment of all applicable application fees for Shadowview 

Commercial Section 3 Preliminary Plans project number 2020-P-1271-PP. 
Applicant: Kimley-Horn & Associates 

Owner: Shadowglen Development Corporation 

Submitted by: Thomas Bolt, City Manager 

3



 

Manor City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 10/21/2020 - Page 4 

 

10. Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve the Purchase Contract with Chau 

Dinh and Anh Kim Pham for a wastewater easement with temporary construction easement. 
Submitted by: Samuel D. Kiger, P.E., City Engineer 

11. Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve the Purchase Contract with John 

Gebauer Jr. and Patricia A. Gebauer for a special warranty deed with temporary construction 

easement. 
Submitted by: Samuel D. Kiger, P.E., City Engineer 

12. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the appointment of a Chairperson to the 

Public Safety Committee.  
Submitted by: Ryan Phipps, Chief of Police 

13. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Resolution in support of the National 

League of Cities City Innovation Ecosystem (CIE) Program. 
Submitted by: Mayor Wallace Jr. 

14. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Resolution in support of Cities United 

violent prevention efforts. 
Submitted by: Mayor Wallace Jr. 

15. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the appointment(s) of a City Council Member 

and/or City staff member to serve as the City of Manor Board Liaison to the Manor Chamber 

of Commerce. 
Submitted by: Mayor Wallace Jr. 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

In addition to any executive session already listed above, the City Council reserves the right to adjourn into 

executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed above, as 

authorized by Texas Government Code Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), §551.072 (Deliberations 

regarding Real Property), §551.073 (Deliberations regarding Gifts and Donations), §551.074 (Personnel Matters), 

§551.076 (Deliberations regarding Security Devices) and §551.087 (Deliberations regarding Economic 

Development Negotiations). 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

In accordance with Section 12.04 (Conflict of Interest) of the City Charter, “No elected or appointed officer or 

employee of the city shall participate in the deliberation or decision on any issue, subject or matter before the 

council or any board or commission, if the officer or employee has a personal financial or property interest, direct 

or indirect, in the issue, subject or matter that is different from that of the public at large. An interest arising from 

job duties, compensation or benefits payable by the city shall not constitute a personal financial interest.” 

Further, in accordance with Chapter 171, Texas Local Government Code (Chapter 171), no City Council member 

and no City officer may vote or participate in discussion of a matter involving a business entity or real property in 

which the City Council member or City officer has a substantial interest (as defined by Chapter 171) and action on 

the matter will have a special economic effect on the business entity or real property that is distinguishable from 

the effect on the general public. An affidavit disclosing the conflict of interest must be filled out and filed with the 

City Secretary before the matter is discussed. 

4



 

Manor City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 10/21/2020 - Page 5 

 

 

POSTING CERTIFICATION 

I, the undersigned authority do hereby certify that this Notice of Meeting was posted on the bulletin board, at the 

City Hall of the City of Manor, Texas, a place convenient and readily accessible to the general public at all times 

and said Notice was posted on the following date and time: Friday, October 16, 2020, by 5:00 PM and remained so 

posted continuously for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting. 

 

  

/s/ Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC 

City Secretary for the City of Manor, Texas 

 

NOTICE OF ASSISTANCE AT PUBLIC MEETINGS: 

The City of Manor is committed to compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Manor City Hall and the Council 

Chambers are wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for accommodations or interpretive 

services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting. Please contact the City Secretary at 512.272.5555 or e-mail 

lalmaraz@cityofmanor.org . 

5

mailto:lalmaraz@cityofmanor.org


Good morning! 

My name is Grant E. Loveless and I am a Youth Leader and Community Collaborator. This 
inonth is Youth Justice Action Month! A month dedicated to youth justice and activism as well 
as raising awareness, strengthening coalitions, and building campaigns to keep children out of 
the adult criminal justice system. 

For this month I would love tQ see how the City of Manor and I can collaborate in building 
awareness and civic engagement"with youth and young adults in the City of Manor. The goals 
that I set for this month is to:' 

(1) Create a day or week where youth learn about community and civic engagement, leadership
and a _dvocacy whefu,er as·an event or program.
(2) Highlight and create a reso_u.tce li:st of nonprofits and businesses that engage or assist youth
who have been affected· or' ate in the ·pl'ison pipeline
(3) Spotlightycnith'oryoti.iig adults who have been affected or in the prison pipeline through
digital storytelling; obtaining their stories and amplifying it on various platforms .

. , ,_.f le:�e iet ine �-ow your thpug�ts .. or-�hat you 1;11ay have PW.imed for this month as i-a&�W1�to collaboratewithyou andtheoouncilir·:'''' .... ,,.,,. · -�--_.-,..,., ....... , .. ,.,.,. ,,.· ,···" .... ,�.,.,. ,. '"'''· ... ,,, . ..

All in love and prosperity, 
,, 

Grant E. Loveless 

Austin Comnrunity College, Student Leader I Social Entrepreneur I Poet 

"I'm for troth, no matt� who tells it. I'm for justice, no "!atter who it's for or a¥_ai1�t. " - Ma_lcolm X
• l t '' ' • J •I; • • •, ( •�••,r, •., 

: � • • • 

http://www.campaignforyouthjustice.org/yjam/

6

Item A.



  AGENDA ITEM NO.  

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: October 21, 2020 

PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Assistant Development Services Director 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Conduct a public hearing upon a rezoning request for 24.81 acres, more or less, out of the Sumner Bacon Survey 
No. 62, Travis County, Texas, and being located at 9910 Hill Lane, Manor, TX from Light Commercial (C-1) to 
Multi-Family 15 (MF-1). 

Applicant: Kimley-Horn & Associates 
Owner: 9 Sunny Partners, LP 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

This property is located mid-way along Hill Lane and is the last property on that road in the city limits. Past this 
property is Austin’s ETJ and Manor Downs. This property is currently zoned C-1 Light Commercial but due to its 
location there is likely to be very little pass-by traffic to support the retail uses permitted in C-1, so destination or 
residential uses are more suitable. 

LEGAL REVIEW: No 

FISCAL IMPACT: No 

PRESENTATION:  No 

ATTACHMENTS:  Yes  

• Rezoning Map 
• Public Notice 
• Mailing Labels 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the City staff’s recommendation that the City Council conduct the public hearing.  

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

7

Item 1.



HILL LN

GR
EG

G 
MA

NO
R 

RD

US HWY 290

Zone
A - Agricultural
SF-1 - Single
Family
Suburban
SF-2 - Single
Family
Standard
MF-2 - Multi-
Family 25
MH-1 -
Manufactured
Home

I-1 -
Institutional
Small
I-2 -
Institutional
Large
GO - General
Office
C-1 - Light
Commercial
C-2 - Medium
Commercial

NB -
Neighborhood
Business
DB - Downtown
Business

IN-1 - Light
Industrial
IN-2 - Heavy
Industrial
PUD - Planned
Unit
Development
ETJ

¹
0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000

Feet

1 inch = 833 feet

Subject Property: 
9910 Hill Lane

P r o p o s e d  Z o n i n g :  P r o p o s e d  Z o n i n g :  
M u l t i - F a m i l y  1 5  ( M F - 1 )  M u l t i - F a m i l y  1 5  ( M F - 1 )  

C u r r e n t  Z o n i n g :  C u r r e n t  Z o n i n g :  
L i g h t  C o m m e r c i a l  ( C - 1 )L i g h t  C o m m e r c i a l  ( C - 1 )

8

Item 1.



9

Item 1.



10

Item 1.



  AGENDA ITEM NO.  

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: October 21, 2020 

PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Assistant Development Services Director 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Conduct a public hearing upon a Concept Plan for Presidential Glen Commercial Subdivision, three (3) lots on 5.4 
acres, more or less, and being located at 13600 US Hwy 290 E., Manor, TX.  
Applicant: Kimley-Horn & Associates 
Owner: West Elgin Development Corporation  

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

This property is located at the intersection of US Hwy 290 and Paseo de Presidente at the 290 entrance to 
Presidential Glen. They are dividing the 5.4-acre commercial tract into 3 lots of 1.4 acres, 1.6 acres, and 2.4 acres. 
This plan has been approved by our engineers.  

LEGAL REVIEW: No 

FISCAL IMPACT: No 

PRESENTATION:  No 

ATTACHMENTS:  Yes  

• Concept Plan 
• Notice Letter 
• Mailing Labels 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
It is the City staff’s recommendation that the City Council conduct the public hearing.   

 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
(Type X before choice to indicate) 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

11

Item 2.



PR
ES

ID
EN

TI
AL

G
LE

N
C

O
M

M
ER

C
IA

L
©

C
O

N
C

EP
T

PL
AN

00 100' 200'

GRAPHIC SCALE 100'

BO
IS

D
AR

C
RD

HWY 290/ MANOR EXPY

VICINITY MAP
SCALE: 1"=2000'

PROJECT
LOCATION

CONCEPT PLAN BOUNDARY

PROPOSED LOT LINE

LEGEND

PROJECT NAME: PRESIDENTIAL GLEN COMMERCIAL PHASE 1

SITE ADDRESS: NW CORNER OF THE INTERSECTION OF HWY
290 AND PASEO DE PRESIDENTE BLVD

RECORD OWNER/DEVELOPER:
WEST ELGIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
9900 HWY 290 EAST
MANOR, TX 78653

ENGINEER:
KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.
10814 JOLLYVILLE ROAD
BUILDING 4, SUITE 200
AUSTIN, TEXAS 78759
CONTACT: KEVIN J. BURKS, P.E.
PH. 512-418-1771

SURVEYOR:
KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.
601 NW LOOP 410
SUITE 350
SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS 78216
PH. 210-307-4356

WATERSHED STATUS
THIS SITE IS LOCATED IN THE
WILBARGER CREEK WATERSHED.

FLOODPLAIN INFORMATION:
NO PORTION OF THIS SITE LIES WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF
THE 100 YR. FLOODPLAIN AS SHOWN ON THE FLOOD
INSURANCE RATE MAP COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 48453CO485J,
DATED AUGUST 18, 2014.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
BEING LOT 1 OF BLOCK KK WITHIN PRESIDENTIAL GLEN
PHASE 1A, SITUATED IN TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS.

CURRENT ZONING:
C-2

PREPARED ON:
JUNE 29, 2020

LOT # ACRES LUES
1 1.4 11
2 1.6 18
3 2.4 28

LUE BREAKDOWN

820 26,000 2,406 165 201
934 8,000 3,768 322 261

6,174 487 462

TRAFFIC VOLUMES

Land Use ITE Land
Use Code Size Units Daily

Trips AM Trips PM Trips

Shopping Center Sq Ft
Fast-Food Restaurant w/ D.T. Sq Ft

Total Project Trips

TRAFFIC

UTILITY DEMAND (LIVING UNIT EQUIVALENT)

LAND USE AND PHASING

12

Item 2.



13

Item 2.



DIALLO MAMADOU BOBO 
16428 TAYSHAS ST 
MANOR, TX 78653 

 
YANG SEKWAN & YOUNGJA YANG 

210 LEE BARTON DR UNIT 201 
AUSTIN, TX 78704-1044 

 

SEGUNDO JOSE SANTOS REYES & 
ERENDIRA MORAIMA REYES 

19420 TAYSHAS ST 
MANOR , TX 78653-3993 

SALINAS BEAU & RUBBIE 
19416 TAYSHAS ST 

MANOR, TX 78653-3993 
 

ANDREWS RYAN R & STEPHANIE ANN 
19412 TAYSHAS ST 

MANOR, TX 78653-3993 
 

HABIB ENTERPRISES LLC 
PO BOX 27241 

AUSTIN , TX 78755-2241 

MUSSON VALDIMIR LYN 
19404 TAYSHAS ST 

MANOR , TX 78653-3993 
 

DELEON MATTHEW S 
1205 W BUSA DR 

SAN TAN VLY, AZ 85143-5460 
 

KENDRICK STEFFON E 
13208 JOHN RECTOR ST 
MANOR , TX 78653-3990 

NYO MAUNG & MA PYO 
13204 JOHN RECTOR ST 
MANOR , TX 78653-3990 

 
CANNON STEVEN & LUCRETIA 

13200 JOHN RECTOR ST 
MANOR , TX 78653-3990 

 
WOOD TIFFANY 

19401 TAYSHAS ST 
MANOR , TX 78653-3993 

ARREOLA ROSALINA 
291 MEADOWOOD LN 

SONOMA, CA 95476-4545 
 

SANCHEZ SUYEN SHALTON 
19409 TAYSHAS ST 

MANOR , TX 78653-3993 
 

SCOTT EMMA J & JOHN J SPENCER JR 
19413 TAYSHAS ST 

MANOR , TX 78653-3993 

HUNTER MICHELLE & ALTON 
19417 TAYSHAS ST 

MANOR , TX 78653-3993 
 

POWELL GLENN & CRISTINA 
19421 TAYSHAS ST 

MANOR , TX 78653-3993 
 

SUDA MALIAKAI & AVIBO 
19425 TAYSHAS ST 

MANOR , TX 78653-3993 

SMITH WYNDEL R & DENISE R 
19429 TAYSHAS ST 

MANOR , TX 78653-3993 
 

RAMIREZ ERNESTO JR & ELVIA L 
CAMPOS 

19433 TAYSHAS ST 
MANOR , TX 78653-3993 

 

WEST ELGIN DEVELOPMENT CORP 
ATTN PETER A DWYER 

9900 US HIGHWAY 290 E 
MANOR , TX 78653-9720 

 
ZALARAM LLC 

30 CHADWICK DR 
DOVER , DE 19901-5827 

  
ZALARAM LLC 

30 CHADWICK DR 
DOVER , DE 19901-5827 

  
BLUEBONNET ELECTRIC COPERATIVE 

INC 
PO BOX 260888 

PLANO , TX 75026-0888 

 
BLUEBONNET ELECTRIC COPERATIVE 

INC 
PO BOX 260888 

PLANO , TX 75026-0888 

  
LCRA TRANSMISSION SERVICES CORP 

LOWER COLORADO RIVER AUTHY 
PO BOX 220 

AUSTIN , TX 78767-0220 

  
 

 
 

  
 

  
 

14

Item 2.



    

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: October 21, 2020 

PREPARED BY: Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary 
DEPARTMENT: Administration 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve the City Council Minutes of the October 7, 2020, Regular 
Meeting. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

 

LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable 

FISCAL IMPACT: Not Applicable 

PRESENTATION:  No 

ATTACHMENTS:  Yes  

• October 7, 2020, Regular Meeting Minutes 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the City Staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve the City Council Minutes of the September 16, 
2020, Regular Meeting.    

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION:  Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

15

Item 3.



 
 

CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR SESSION MINUTES 

OCTOBER 7, 2020 
 

City of Manor  Page 1 
 
 
 
 
 

The meeting was live streamed on Manor Facebook Live beginning at 7:00 p.m.  
https://www.facebook.com/cityofmanor/ 

 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Dr. Larry Wallace Jr., Mayor  
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
 
Emily Hill, Place 1 
Maria Amezcua, Place 2  
Dr. Christopher Harvey, Place 3 
Danny Scarbrough, Place 4 (Absent) 
Deja Hill, Mayor Pro Tem, Place 5  
Vacant, Place 6 
 
CITY STAFF: 
 
Thomas Bolt, City Manager 
Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary 
Scott Dunlop, Assistant Development Services Director 
Tracey Vasquez, HR Manager 
Frank Phelan, P.E., City Engineer 
Bryan Estrada, Manor Police Officer 
 
REGULAR SESSION – 7:00 P.M.  
 
 With a quorum of the Council Members present, the regular session of the Manor City Council 
was called to order by Mayor Wallace Jr. at 7:00 p.m. on Wednesday, October 7, 2020, in the 
Council Chambers of the Manor City Hall, 105 E. Eggleston St., Manor, Texas. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 At the request of Mayor Wallace Jr., Council Member Amezcua led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
  

16

Item 3.

https://www.facebook.com/cityofmanor/


 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
October 7, 2020 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 2 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PROCLAMATION 
 

A. Declaring September 15 – October 15, 2020, as “National Hispanic Heritage Month” 
 

Mayor Wallace Jr. read and presented a proclamation declaring September 15 – October 
15, 2020, as “National Hispanic Heritage Month” to Council Member Amezcua.    

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS    
 

No one appeared to speak at this time. 
 
REPORTS 
Reports about item of community interest on which no action was taken. 
 

A. Economic Development Report 
 
Mayor Wallace Jr. discussed the attached TML Economic Development Report regarding 

Hotel Occupancy Tax Revenues for Cities.    
 
City Manager Bold discussed the projects completed within the City of Manor with the use 

of HOT Funds.  
 
The discussion was held regarding future projects for the City of Manor.  
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
1. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the addition of land to the Manor 

Heights Public Improvement District (PID). 
 

The City staff recommended that the City Council conduct the public hearing.  
 
 Mayor Wallace Jr. opened the public hearing.  
 
 City Manager Bolt discussed the addition of land to the Manor Heights Public 
Improvement District (PID).  
 

MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Amezcua and seconded by Council Member 
Dr. Harvey, to close the Public Hearing.   

 
 Mayor Wallace Jr. open the floor for any questions to the motion.   

 
There was no discussion.  

 
Motion to close carried 5-0 
 

17

Item 3.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
October 7, 2020 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 3 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
2. Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve the City Council Minutes of the 

September 16, 2020, Regular Meeting. 
 

3. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance rezoning twenty (20) acre, 
more or less, out of the James Manor Survey No. 40, and being located at 10507 US Hwy 
290 E, Manor, TX from Single Family (SF-1) and Light Commercial (C-1) to Medium 
Commercial (C-2). 

 
Ordinance No. 582: An Ordinance of the City of Manor, Texas, Amending the Zoning 

Ordinance by Rezoning a Parcel of Land From Single Family (SF-1) and Light Commercial 
(C-1) to Medium Commercial (C-2); Making Findings of Fact; and Providing for Related 
Matters. 

 
4. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance rezoning 0.36 acres, more 

or less, Lots 11-15 & East ½ of Lot 16, Block 29, Town of Manor, and being located at 
109 North Lexington Street, Manor, TX from Single Family (SF-1) to Downtown 
Business (DB). 

 
Ordinance No. 583: An Ordinance of the City of Manor, Texas, Amending the Zoning 

Ordinance by Rezoning a Parcel of Land From Single Family (SF-1) to Downtown Business 
(DB); Making Findings of Fact; and Providing for Related Matters. 

 
5. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance rezoning 0.91 acres, more 

or less, out of the James Manor Survey No. 40, Abstract No. 546, and being located near 
US Hwy 290 E and Gregg Manor Road, Manor, TX from Light Commercial (C-1) to 
Multi-Family 25 (MF-2). 

 
Ordinance No. 584: An Ordinance of the City of Manor, Texas, Amending the Zoning 

Ordinance by Rezoning a Parcel of Land From Light Commercial (C-1) to Multi-Family 25 
(MF-2); Making Findings of Fact; and Providing for Related Matters. 

 
6. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance rezoning 50.32 acres, 

more or less, out of the Greenbury Gates Survey, and being located near N. FM 973 and 
Johnson Road, Manor, TX from Agricultural (A) to Two-Family (TF) and Medium 
Commercial (C-2). 

 
Ordinance No. 585: An Ordinance of The City of Manor, Texas, Amending the Zoning 

Ordinance by Rezoning a Parcel of Land From Agricultural (A) to Two-Family (TF) and 
Medium Commercial (C-2); Making Findings of Fact; and Providing for Related Matters. 

  

18

Item 3.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
October 7, 2020 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 4 
 
 
 
 
 

 
MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Dr. Harvey and seconded by Council 

Member Emily Hill, to approve and adopt all items on the Consent Agenda.  
   
  Mayor Wallace Jr. open the floor for any questions to the motion.   
  
  There was no discussion.  
 
Motion to approve carried 5-0 
 
REGULAR AGENDA 
 
7. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a resolution authorizing the addition of 

land to the Manor Heights Public Improvement District (PID).  
 

 The City staff recommended that the City Council approve and adopt Resolution No. 2020-
11 authorizing the addition of land to the Manor Heights Public Improvement District (PID) 
and direct the City Secretary to publish a copy of the resolution adopted.   

 
 Talley Williams with Metcalfe Wolff Stuart & Williams LLP, 221 W. 6th Street, Suite 
1300, Austin Texas, submitted a speaker card in support of this item; however, she did not 
wish to speak but was available to answer any questions posed by the City Council.   

 
 Resolution No. 2020-11: A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Manor, Texas, 
Authorizing the Addition of Land to the Manor Heights Public Improvement District. 

 
MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Dr. Harvey and seconded by Council 

Member Amezcua, to approve Resolution No. 2020-11 authorizing the addition of 
land to the Manor Heights Public Improvement District (PID) and direct the City 
Secretary to publish a copy of the resolution adopted.   

 
  Mayor Wallace Jr. open the floor for any questions to the motion.      
   
  There was no discussion. 
 
Motion to approve carried 5-0 
 
8. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an award of a Master Services 

Agreement and Statement of Work to George Butler Associates, Inc. for engineering 
services for the 2020 Capital Metro BCT Paving Improvements Project. 
 
 The City staff recommended that the City Council approve the Master Services Agreement 
and Statement of Work to George Butler Associates, Inc. for engineering services for the 2020 
Capital Metro BCT Paving Improvement Project.  

 
 

19

Item 3.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
October 7, 2020 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 5 
 
 
 
 
 

  City Engineer Phelan discussed the award of a Master Services Agreement for engineering 
services to George Butler Associates, Inc.  

 
MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Deja Hill and seconded by Council Member 

Amezcua, to approve the Master Services Agreement and Statement of Work to 
George Butler Associates, Inc. for engineering services for the 2020 Capital Metro 
BCT Paving Improvement Project. 

 
 Mayor Wallace Jr. open the floor for any questions to the motion.   

 
 The discussion was held regarding the clarification of the 2020 Capital Metro BCT Paving 
Improvement Project.   

  
  There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to close carried 5-0 
 
9. Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve a Purchase Contract with 

Dutch Clean Storage, Inc. for a wastewater easement with temporary construction 
easement. 
 

The City staff recommended that the City Council approve the purchase contract with 
Dutch Clean Storage, Inc. for a wastewater easement with temporary construction easement.   
 
  City Engineer Phelan discussed the Purchase Contract with Dutch Clean Storage, Inc.   
 

MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Dr. Harvey and seconded by Council 
Member Amezcua, to approve a Purchase Contract with Dutch Clean Storage, Inc. 
for a wastewater easement with temporary construction easement.    

 
 Mayor Wallace Jr. open the floor for any questions to the motion.   
 
 The discussion was held regarding clarification on funding and the wastewater easement.  

 
  There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to close carried 5-0 
 
10. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on consent to approve the assignment and 

transfer of the City of Manor’s Professional Services Agreement for engineering services 
plus work as authorized by addendum. 
 

  

20

Item 3.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
October 7, 2020 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 6 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The City staff recommended that the City Council consent and approve the assignment and 

transfer of the Professional Services Agreement with Jay Engineering Company, Inc. to 
George Butler Associates, Inc. and direct the Mayor or the City Manager to execute the 
Approval of Engineering Services Transfer for City of manor and George Butler Associates, 
Inc.  

 
City Engineer Phelan explained the transfer of engineering services to George Butler 

Associates, Inc.  
 
MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Dr. Harvey and seconded by Council 

Member Emily Hill, to approve the assignment and transfer of the Professional 
Services Agreement with Jay Engineering Company, Inc. to George Butler 
Associates, Inc. and direct the Mayor or the City Manager to execute the Approval 
of Engineering Services Transfer for City of Manor and George Butler Associates, 
Inc. 

 
 Mayor Wallace Jr. open the floor for any questions to the motion.   

 
  There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to close carried 5-0 
 
11. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance closing, vacating, and 

abandoning a 20’ alley crossing Block 10, Town of Manor. 
 
 The City staff recommended that the City Council approve Ordinance No. 586 closing, 
vacating, and abandoning a 20’ alley crossing Block 10, Town of Manor and directing the 
Mayor to execute the Special Warranty Deed.   
 
 Scott Dunlop, Asst. Development Services Director was available to address any questions 
posed by the City Council.  
 
 City Manager Bolt discussed the ordinance.  
 
 Ordinance No. 586: An Ordinance of The City of Manor, Texas, Closing, Vacating, and 
Abandoning a 20’ Alley Crossing Block 10, Town of Manor Recorded in Volume V, Page 796 
of the Deed Records of Travis County, Texas; Authorizing Conveyance to Abutting Property 
Owners in Proportion to Abutting Ownership; Providing Findings of Fact; Authorizing 
Conveyance of Such Abandoned Alley By Special Warranty Deed; Providing Severability, 
Effective Date And Open Meetings Clauses; And Providing For Related Matters. 
 

MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Dr. Harvey and seconded by Council 
Member Amezcua, to approve Ordinance No. 586 closing, vacating, and abandoning 
a 20’ alley crossing Block 10, Town of Manor and directing the Mayor to execute the 
Special Warranty Deed.  

21

Item 3.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
October 7, 2020 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 7 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 Mayor Wallace Jr. open the floor for any questions to the motion.   

 
  The discussion was held regarding the abandonment of the alley.  
 
  There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to close carried 5-0 
 
12. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance authorizing the 

suspension of the maximum period a temporary sign may be displayed. 
 

The City staff recommended that the City Council approve Ordinance No. 587 authorizing 
the suspension of the maximum period a temporary sign may be displayed.  

 
Asst. Development Services Director Dunlop discussed the temporary sign suspension.    
 
Ordinance No. 587: An Ordinance of the City of Manor, Texas, Authorizing the 

Suspension of The Maximum Time Period a Temporary Sign May be Displayed; Making 
Findings of Fact; Providing a Savings Clause; Providing an Effective Date; and Providing for 
Certain Related Matters.   
 

MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Dr. Harvey and seconded by Council 
Member Amezcua to approve Ordinance No. 587 authorizing the suspension of the 
maximum period a temporary sign may be displayed until December 31, 2020.  

 
 Mayor Wallace Jr. open the floor for any questions to the motion.   
 
 The discussion was held regarding local food trucks signs.  
 
 The discussion was held regarding current restrictions on signs per city code.  

 
  There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to close carried 5-0 
 
 Mayor Wallace Jr. adjourned the regular session of the Manor City Council into Executive 
Session at 8:03 p.m. on Wednesday, October 7, 2020, in accordance with the requirements of the 
Open Meetings Law.  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 

The Manor City Council convene into executive session pursuant to Section 551.071, Texas 
Government Code, in accordance with the authority in Section 551.074 Personnel Matters - Job 
Descriptions at 8:03 p.m. on Wednesday, October 7, 2020.  

22

Item 3.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
October 7, 2020 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 8 
 
 
 
 
 

The Executive Session was adjourned at 10:02 p.m. on Wednesday, October 7, 2020. 
   
OPEN SESSION   
 

The City Council reconvened into Open Session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551 
Texas Government Code and took action on item(s) discussed during Closed Executive Session at 
10:02 p.m. on Wednesday, October 7, 2020. 
  

Mayor Wallace Jr. opened the floor for action to be taken on the items discussed in the 
Executive Session. 
  
 There was no action taken.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 The Regular Session of the Manor City Council Adjourned at 10:02 p.m. on Wednesday, 
October 7, 2020. 
 
 These minutes approved by the Manor City Council on the 21st day of October 2020.  
 
APPROVED: 
  
__________________________________ 
Dr. Larry Wallace Jr.  
Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________________________ 
Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC 
City Secretary  

23

Item 3.



 

 

 

 

Texas Municipal League 

Economic Development Handbook  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2020 Editor 
 

Zindia Thomas  

Assistant General Counsel 

Texas Municipal League 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Texas Municipal League 

1821 Rutherford Lane, Suite 400 

Austin, Texas 78754 

www.tml.org 

legalinfo@tml.org 

512-231-7400 

 

 
Updated January 2020

24

Item 3.

http://www.tml.org/
mailto:legalinfo@tml.org


IV. Economic Development Through Tourism 

2020 Economic Development Handbook • Texas Municipal League 

139 

 

A city and county may also require that persons buying a hotel retain out of the purchase price an 

amount sufficient to cover any delinquent hotel occupancy taxes that are due to the city.
890

 If the 

buyer does not remit such amount to the city and county (where applicable) or show proof that 

the hotel is current in remitting its hotel occupancy taxes, the buyer becomes liable for any 

delinquent hotel occupancy taxes due on the purchased hotel. 

The purchaser of a hotel may request that the city and county provide a receipt showing that no 

hotel occupancy tax is due (a “Letter of No Tax Due”) on the property to be purchased.
891

 The 

city and county are required to issue the statement not later than the 60th day after the request. If 

the city or county fails to issue the statement within the deadline, the purchaser is released from 

the obligation to withhold the amount due from the purchase price for that local governmental 

entity.
892

 

Use of Local Hotel Occupancy Tax Revenues for Cities 

There is a two-part test that every expenditure of local hotel occupancy tax revenue must pass to 

be valid. First, the expenditure must directly enhance and promote tourism and the convention 

and hotel industry.
893

 In other words, the expenditure must be likely to attract visitors from 

outside the city into the city or its vicinity and must have some impact on convention and hotel 

activity. If the expenditure is not reasonably likely to accomplish this result, it cannot be funded 

by hotel occupancy tax revenues. The hotel occupancy tax may not be used for general revenue 

purposes or to pay for governmental expenses not directly related to increasing tourism.
894  

Second, every expenditure must clearly fit into one of the statutory categories for the expenditure 

of local hotel occupancy tax revenues. These categories are as follows:
895

 

1. Funding the establishment, improvement or maintenance of a convention center or 

visitor information center.
896

 
Simply naming a facility a convention center or visitor information center does not bring it under 

this section. State law specifies that the facility must be one that is primarily used to host 

conventions and meetings.
897

 The term “convention center” is defined to include civic centers, 

auditoriums, exhibition halls, and coliseums that are owned by the city or another governmental 

entity or that are managed in whole or in part by the city and that are used primarily to host 

conventions and meetings. “Meetings” means gatherings of people that enhance and promote 

tourism and the convention and hotel industry.
898

 It also includes parking areas in the immediate 

vicinity of other convention center facilities. It does not include facilities that are not of the same 

general characteristics as the structures listed above. 

 

                                                 
890

  Id. §§ 351.0041, 352.0041. 
891

  Id. §§ 351.0041(c); 352.0041(c). 
892

  Id. §§ 351.0041(d); 352.0041(d). 
893

  Id. § 351.101(a). See Tex. Att’y Gen. Op. No. GA-0124 (2003). 
894

  Tex. Tax Code. § 351.101(b). 
895

  Id. §§ 351.101(a), .0035 .110. 
896

  Id. § 351.101(a)(1). 
897

  Id. § 351.001(2). 
898

  Id.  

25

Item 3.



IV. Economic Development Through Tourism 

2020 Economic Development Handbook • Texas Municipal League 

140 

 

The attorney general has specifically ruled against the expenditure of local hotel occupancy taxes 

for a city recreational facility such as a golf course or a tennis court.
899

 However, the legislature 

has provided additional statutory authority that allows the use of local hotel occupancy tax for 

certain sporting related expenses if they meet certain criteria discussed below. It is possible that 

facilities that are not considered convention centers may still be able to receive funding if the 

expenditure can be justified under the categories described below for promotion of the arts or for 

historical preservation or restoration projects. A city may pledge the hotel occupancy tax revenue 

for the payment of bonds that are issued under Chapter 1504 of the Government Code for 

convention center facilities, as authorized under the hotel occupancy tax law.
900

 

 

2. Paying the administrative costs for facilitating convention registration.
901

 

This provision applies only to administrative costs that are actually incurred for assisting in the 

registration of convention delegates or attendees. It may include covering the facility costs, 

personnel costs, and costs of materials for the registration of convention delegates or attendees. 

 

3. Paying for tourism-related advertising and promotion of the city or its vicinity.
 902

 

This provision is strictly limited to expenditures for a solicitation or promotional program or 

advertising which is directly related to attracting conventions or tourism. The attorney general 

has ruled that this provision does not authorize advertising to attract new businesses or 

permanent residents to a city.
903

 Again, the purpose of the expenditure must be directly related to 

increasing tourism and the convention and hotel industry. 

 

4. Funding programs that enhance the arts.
 904

 

This section authorizes the expenditure of hotel occupancy tax revenues for a variety of arts-

related programs. It allows funding for the encouragement, promotion, improvement, and 

application of the arts including instrumental and vocal music, dance, drama, folk art, creative 

writing, architecture, design and allied fields, painting, sculpture, photography, graphic and craft 

arts, motion pictures, radio, television, tape and sound recording, and other arts related to the 

presentation, performance, execution, and exhibition of these major art forms. The fact that a 

program directly promotes the arts is not in itself sufficient to justify expenditure of the local 

hotel tax. The funded event/facility must also have the impact of directly promoting both tourism 

and the hotel and convention industry. 

 

5. Funding historical restoration or preservation programs.
 905

 

This category allows a city to spend its hotel occupancy tax revenues to enhance historical 

restoration and preservation projects or activities that encourage tourists and convention 

delegates to visit the city’s preserved historic sites or museums. This funding can include the 

costs for rehabilitation or preservation of existing historic structures. Also, the costs of 

advertising, conducting solicitations, and promotional programs to encourage tourists and 

                                                 
899 

 See Tex. Att’y Gen. Op. Nos. JM-184 (1984), JM-965 (1988). 
900

  Tex. Tax Code § 351.102. 
901

  Id. § 351.101(a)(2). 
902

  Id. § 351.101(a)(3). 
903

  See Tex. Att’y Gen. Op. No. JM-690 (1987) ( [Chapter 351 of the Tax Code] does not authorize the use of 

hotel/motel occupancy tax funds for advertising which is not related to attracting conventions, visitors or 

tourists). 
904

  Tex. Tax Code § 351.101(a)(4). 
905

  Id. § 351.101(a)(5). 

26

Item 3.



IV. Economic Development Through Tourism 

2020 Economic Development Handbook • Texas Municipal League 

141 

 

convention delegates to visit such preserved historic structures or museums can be funded under 

this category.  The tax can be used on historic sites or museums that are in the immediate vicinity 

of the convention center facilities or visitor information centers, or anywhere else in the city 

where tourist and convention delegates frequently visit. The fact that a program results in 

historical restoration or preservation is not in itself sufficient to justify expenditure of the local 

hotel tax.  The funded event/facility must also have the impact of directly promoting both 

tourism and the hotel and convention industry. 

 

6. Funding costs to hold sporting events in certain municipalities.
906

 

Certain cities may use hotel occupancy tax proceeds for expenses, including promotional 

expenses, directly related to sporting events in which the majority of participants are tourists.  

These cities are: 

 

1. cities located in a county with a population of one million or less;
 907

 

2. a city with a population of more than 67,000 that is located in two counties with 90 

percent of the city’s territory located in a county with a population of at least 580,000, 

and the remaining territory located in a county with a population of at lest four 

million.
908

; or 

3. a city with a population of at least 200,000 and shares a border with: 

a. a city with the population of at least 56,000 that borders Lake Ray Hubbard and is 

located in two counties, one of which has a population of less than 80,000, and 

b. Lake Ray Hubbard.
909

  

Such funding is permissible provided the sporting event substantially increases economic activity 

at hotels and motels within the city or its vicinity. This provision is intended to allow 

communities to fund the event costs for sporting tournaments that result in substantial hotel 

activity. For example, if a city had to pay an application fee to seek a particular sporting event or 

tournament, it could use this authority if the event would substantially increase economic activity 

at hotels and the city was within a county of one million or less population. The requirement that 

a majority of the participants must be “tourists” is included to prohibit the use of local hotel tax 

for sporting related facilities or events that are purely local (e.g., local recreation centers, local 

little league and parks events, etc.). 

 

7. Enhancing and upgrading existing sport facilities or fields for certain 

municipalities.
910

 

This expenditure authorizes certain cities to use hotel occupancy tax revenue to upgrade certain 

existing sports facilities. Existing sports facilities or fields may be upgraded with hotel 

occupancy tax revenue if the facility is: 1) owned by the city;
911

 and 2) the sports facility or field 

                                                 
906

  Id. § 351.101(a)(6). 
907

  Id. § 351.101(a)(6)(A). 
908

  Id. § 351.101(a)(6)(B). 
909

  Id. § 351.101(a)(6)(C) (as added by S.B 1262, 86
th

 Leg., R.S. Effective September 1, 2019) (Note: Parts of 

S.B. 1262 was repealed by H.B. 4347, 86
th

 Leg., R.S.  This section is based on what that section would have 

said had it not been repealed.) 
910

  Id. § 351.101(a)(7). 
911

  Id. § 351.101(a)(7)(A). 

27

Item 3.



IV. Economic Development Through Tourism 

2020 Economic Development Handbook • Texas Municipal League 

142 

 

has been used in preceding calendar year a combined total of more than 10 times for district, 

state, regional, or national sports tournaments.
912

 The cities that are authorized to use hotel 

occupancy tax revenue for this expenditure are: 

 

1) those with a population of 80,000 or more that are located in a county with a population 

of 350,00 or less; 

2) those with a population of between 75,000 and 95,000 that are located in a county with a 

population of less than 200,000 but not more than 160,000;  

3) those with a population of between 36,000 and 39,000 that are located in a county with a 

population of 100,000 or less that is not adjacent to a county with a population of more 

than 2 million; 

4) those with a population of at least 13,000 but less than 39,000 and is located in a county 

that has a population of at least 200,000; 

5) those with a population of at least 70,000 but less than 90,000 and no part of the city is 

located in a county with a population greater than 150,000;  

6) those located in a county that has a population of at least 500,000, adjacent to the Texas-

Mexico border and the county does not have a city with a population greater than 

500,000;  

7) those with  a population of at least 25,000 but not more than 26,000 and is located in a 

county that has population of 90,000 or less; 

8) those located in a county that has a population of not more than 300,000 and in which a 

component university of the University of Houston System is located; 

9) those with a population of at least 40,000 and the San Marcos River flows through the 

municipality;  

10) those with a population of more than 67,000 that are located in two counties with 90 

percent of the city’s territory located in a county with a population of at least 580,000, 

and the remaining territory located in a county with a population of at least four million; 

11) those that contain an intersection of Interstates 35E and 35W and at least two public 

universities; 

12) a city with a population of at least 200,000 and shares a border with a city with the 

population of at least 56,000 that borders Lake Ray Hubbard and is located in two 

counties, one of which has a population of less than 80,000, and Lake Ray Hubbard;
 913

 

13) those that have a population of not more than 1,500 and are located in a county that 

borders Arkansas and Louisiana;
914

 

14) those with a population of not more than 10,000, that contain an outdoor gear and 

sporting goods retailer with retail space larger than 175,000 square feet, and that host an 

annual wiener dog race;
915

  

                                                 
912

  Id. § 351.101(a)(7)(C). 
913

  Id. § 351.101(a)(7)(B)(i)-(xii). See ftnt 909 concerning this specific section. 
914

  Id. § 351.101(n). 
915

  Id. § 351.101(o). 

28

Item 3.



IV. Economic Development Through Tourism 

2020 Economic Development Handbook • Texas Municipal League 

143 

 

15) those in the county seat of a county that has a population of more than 10,000 and 

contains a portion of Mound Lake;
916

 

16) those that are the county seat of a county that is located on the Texas-Mexico border, 

have a population of 500,000 or more, and are adjacent to two or more counties, each of 

which have a population of 50,000 or more;
917

 

17) those that have a population of at least 6,000 and that are the county seat of a county that 

borders Louisiana, is bisected by a United States highway, and has a population of 75,000 

or less;
918

 or 

18) A city with a population of at least 95,000 that is located in a county that is bisected by 

United States Highway 385 and has a population of not more than 140,000.
919

 

If hotel tax revenues are spent on enhancing or upgrading a sports facility, the city must 

determine the amount of “area hotel revenue” that was generated by hotel activity from sports 

events that were held at the hotel tax funded facility for five years after the upgrades to the sport 

facility are complete.
920

 The area hotel revenues that were generated from sports events at the 

hotel tax-funded facility over that five year period must at least equal the amount of hotel tax that 

was spent to upgrade the sports facility.
921

 If the amount of hotel tax that was spent on the 

facility upgrades exceeds hotel revenue attributable to the enhancements over that five-year 

period, the city must reimburse the hotel occupancy tax revenue fund any such difference from 

the city’s general fund.
922

 For example, if a city spent $400,000 on improvements to its soccer 

fields, it would have to show at least $400,000 in hotel night revenue, including hotel banquet 

revenue, directly attributable to events held at that soccer field over the five year period after the 

soccer field improvements were completed.  If the city could only show $300,000 in hotel 

industry revenue due to events held at that soccer field, the city would have to reimburse the city 

hotel tax for the $100,000 difference from the city’s general fund. 

 

8. Signage to sights and attractions.
923

 

Cities are allowed to use hotel occupancy tax to erect signage to direct the public to sights and 

attractions that are visited frequently by hotel guests in the city. 

 

9. Funding transportation systems for tourists.
924

 

With conventions and large meetings, there is often a need to transport the attendees to different 

tourism venues.  Cities are allowed to use of hotel occupancy tax to cover the costs for 

transporting tourists from hotels in and near the city to any of the following destinations: 

 

 the commercial center of the city; 

 a convention center in the city; 

 other hotels in or near the city; and  

                                                 
916

  Id. § 351.10711. 
917

  Id. § 351.1068. 
918

  Id. § 351.1079. 
919

  Id. § 351.10712. 
920

  Id. § 351.1076(a). 
921

  Id. 
922

  Id. § 351.1076(b). 
923

  Id. § 351.101(a)(9). 
924

  Id. § 351.110. 

29

Item 3.



IV. Economic Development Through Tourism 

2020 Economic Development Handbook • Texas Municipal League 

144 

 

 tourist attractions in or near the city. 

 

The reimbursed transportation system must be owned and operated by the city, or privately 

owned and operated and financed in part by the city.  The law specifically prohibits the use of 

the local hotel occupancy tax to cover the costs for transporting the general public by any such 

system. 

 

Use of Local Hotel Occupancy Tax Revenues for Counties 
Just like cities, counties that are authorized to impose hotel occupancy tax have to follow a two-

part test to determine that every expenditure of the tax is valid.
925

 First, the expenditure must 

directly enhance and promote tourism and the convention and hotel industry. The expenditure 

must be likely to attract visitors from outside the county into the county or it vicinity and must 

have some impact on convention and hotel activity. If the expenditure is not reasonably likely to 

accomplish this result, it should not be funded by hotel occupancy tax revenues.  The hotel 

occupancy tax may not be used for general revenue purposes or general governmental operations 

of a county.
926

 

 

Second, a county can only spend hotel occupancy tax revenue on those categories of 

expenditures that the county has specifically been given permission by statute to do so.
927

 

Usually, this depends on either the population of the county or where the county is 

geographically located or both. 

 

Use of Tax Proceeds to Cover Administrative Expenses  

The implementation of programs or improvements under the above categories may involve 

certain administrative costs. State law allows proceeds of the tax to be used to cover the portion 

of administrative costs that are directly attributable to work on facilities or events that may be 

funded by the tax.
928

 For example, efforts to promote the city or county as a tourist and 

convention locale often involve some travel expenses. There are two circumstances under which 

cities or counties may spend hotel occupancy tax revenues for travel-related expenditures.
929

 

 

 First, tax revenues may be spent to pay for travel to attend an event or to conduct an 

activity that is directly related to the promotion of tourism and the convention and hotel 

industry. “Tourism” is defined in the Tax Code as guiding or managing the travel of 

individuals from their residence to a different city or county for pleasure, recreation, 

education, or culture.
930

 

 Second, local hotel occupancy tax revenues may be spent on travel that is directly related 

to the performance of the person’s job in an efficient and professional manner. This travel 

should facilitate the acquisition of skills and knowledge which will promote tourism and 

the convention and hotel industry. 

                                                 
925

  Id. § 352.1031(a) (This statute refers to Tax Code § 351.101). 
926

  Id. § 352.1031(b). 
927

  Id. §§ 352.101-.106; .108; .110; .111; .113. 
928

  Id. §§ 351.101(e)-(f), 352.1015(c)-(d). 
929

  Id. 
930

  Id. §§ 351.001(5), (6), 352.001(3), (4). 

30

Item 3.



IV. Economic Development Through Tourism 

2020 Economic Development Handbook • Texas Municipal League 

145 

 

Entities that manage activities funded by the hotel occupancy tax may spend some of the tax for 

certain day-to-day operational expenses. These expenses may include supplies, salaries, office 

rental, travel expenses, and other administrative costs. These costs can be reimbursed if they are 

incurred directly in the promotion and servicing of expenditures authorized under the hotel 

occupancy tax laws. The portion of the administrative costs that are covered may not exceed the 

percentage of the cost that is attributable to the activity funded by the hotel occupancy tax. In 

other words, administrators who spend 33 percent of their time overseeing hotel occupancy tax 

funded programs could seek funding for no more than 33 percent of their salary or 33 percent of 

other related overhead costs.
931

 

 

Use of State Tax Revenue for Qualified Hotel Projects by Certain Cities 
 

Certain cities can receive certain state tax revenues for a qualified hotel project or other ancillary 

facilities of a qualified project.
932

 Generally, the hotel will be located on city-owned land that is 

connected to or within 1,000 feet of a qualified convention center facility.
933

 The state tax 

revenues will be used to pay bonds, obligations, and contractual obligations issued or entered in 

connection with the qualified project
934

 involving qualified convention center facilities and the 

qualified hotel.
935

 A city will be able to pledge this revenue for 10 years following the date a 

qualified hotel was open for initial occupancy and would not be entitled to pledge or receive this 

revenue unless a qualified project was commenced before September 1, 2023.
936

 The comptroller 

would deposit revenue collected by or forwarded to the comptroller that had been pledged by the 

city in a separate account outside of the state treasury and pay the revenue to the city at least 

quarterly.
937

 

 

Additional Limits on Expenditures 

Texas statutes provide certain additional rules regarding the percentage of hotel occupancy tax 

revenues that may be spent on each of the categories of expenditures discussed above. The rules 

differ according to the population of the city or the description of the county in the Tax Code. 

 

General Rules of Allocation of Hotel Occupancy Tax Revenue 

Minimum Expenditure That Must be Spent on Advertising and Promotion 

A city with a population of 200,000 or greater is required to spend at least 50 percent of the hotel 

occupancy tax collected by the city on advertising and conducting solicitations and promotional 

programs to attract tourists to the city or its vicinity.
938

 However, it should be noted that if a city 

takes in over $2 million annually in hotel taxes, it is not subject to this 50 percent requirement.
939

 

                                                 
931

  Id. §§ 351.101(e), 352.1015(c). 
932

  Id. §§ 351.151 - .160. 
933

  Id. §§ 351.151(3) (definition of “qualified hotel”); .151(2) (definition of “qualified convention center”). 
934

  Id. § 351.151(4) (definition of “qualified project”). 
935

  Id. § 351.155. 
936

  Id. §§ 351.157(e); .158. See id. §§ 351.156; .157 (describes which certain tax revenue a city is entitled to for 

this subchapter). 
937

  Id. §§ 351.159; .160. 
938

  Id. § 351.103(a). 
939

  Id. § 351.103(b). See also Tex. Att’y Gen. Op. No. JC-105 (1999) (Pursuant to Section 351.103(b) of the 

Texas Tax Code, the allocation restriction of Section 351.103(a) of the Tax Code does not apply to a 

31

Item 3.



IV. Economic Development Through Tourism 

2020 Economic Development Handbook • Texas Municipal League 

146 

 

 

If the city has a population of less than 200,000, the amount that the city can spend on 

advertising and conducting solicitations and promotional programs depends on the hotel 

occupancy tax rate adopted by the city. If the city adopted a hotel occupancy tax rate of not more 

than three percent, at least one-half of one percent of the rate must be spent on advertising and 

promotion of the city and its vicinity.
940

 If the city adopted a hotel occupancy tax rate that 

exceeds three percent, at least one percent of the rate must be spent on advertising and promotion 

of the city and its vicinity.
 941

 For example, if a city has a seven percent hotel occupancy tax rate, 

at least one-seventh of the hotel occupancy tax proceeds must be spent on advertising and 

promoting the city and its vicinity to attract tourists and hotel and convention activity. Also, a 

city with a population of at least 200,000 and shares a border with a city with the population of at 

least 56,000 that borders Lake Ray Hubbard and is located in two counties, one of which has a 

population of less than 80,000, and Lake Ray Hubbard must spend 30 percent of the tax collected 

on advertising and conducting solicitations and promotional programs to attract tourists to the 

city or its vicinity.
942

 

 

Maximum Expenditure for the Arts 

Generally, cities with populations of less than 1.6 million are limited to a set percentage with 

regard to art programs. Such cities may not spend on art programs more than 15 percent of their 

hotel occupancy tax revenues or no more than the amount of tax generated by the city at the tax 

rate of one percent of the cost of a room, whichever is greater.
943

  If the city has a population of 

more than 1.6 million (Houston), then not more than 19.30 percent of hotel occupancy tax 

revenue or no more than the amount of tax generated by the city at the tax rate of one percent of 

the cost of a room, whichever is greater, can be spent on art programs. 

 

Maximum Expenditure for Historical Restoration and Preservation 

Cities with a population of more than 125,000 may not spend more than 15 percent of their tax 

revenue for historical restoration and preservation projects and activities.
944

 If a city fails to 

allocate money for a convention center purpose, the Tax Code prohibits that city from allocating 

more than 50 percent of its hotel occupancy tax for historical restoration or preservation 

projects.
945

 If a city with a population under 125,000 does spend some of its hotel occupancy tax 

on a convention center, there is no statutory limitation on expenditures for historic preservation 

and restoration. 

 

Delegating the Management of Funded Activities  

The governing body of a city and county may, by written contract, delegate the management or 

supervision of programs and activities funded with revenue from the hotel occupancy tax.
946

 This 

                                                                                                                                                             
municipality which has collected in excess of $2 million in hotel occupancy tax revenue in the most recent 

calendar year). 
940

  Tex. Tax Code § 351.103(a)(1). 
941

  Id. § 351.103(a)(2). 
942

  Id. § 351.103(b-1). See ftnt 909 concerning this specific section. 
943

  Id. § 351.103(c). 
944

  Id. 
945

  Id. § 351.103(d). 
946

  Id. §§ 351.101(c)), 352.1015. 

32

Item 3.



IV. Economic Development Through Tourism 

2020 Economic Development Handbook • Texas Municipal League 

147 

 

delegation may be made to a person, another governmental entity, or to a private organization.
947

 

The delegation of this authority is often made to the local chamber of commerce or to the 

convention and visitor bureau. 

 

There are a number of procedural requirements that the legislature has imposed on entities that 

undertake management of these funds. For example, a city or county is required to approve in 

writing the portion of an entity’s annual budget that involves expenditure of hotel occupancy tax 

funds. This approval must be sought in advance of the expenditures. Hotel tax funded entities 

also must submit at least quarterly reports to the city council or the commissioners court on their 

expenditures of the tax revenues. The reports must list all expenditures made by the entity from 

the hotel occupancy taxes provided by the city or county.
948

 The entity is required to keep 

complete and accurate financial records of each expenditure of hotel occupancy tax revenue.
949

 

These records must be made available for inspection and review upon the request of the 

governing body or upon a request from any other person. 

 

The entity delegated authority to manage these funded programs undertakes a fiduciary duty with 

respect to this revenue. Such entities are required to maintain the city hotel occupancy tax 

revenue in a separate bank account established for that purpose. This account may not be 

commingled with any other account.
950

  

 

Documenting Activities Funded by the Hotel Occupancy Tax 

Before making a hotel occupancy tax expenditure, a city, county, or other hotel occupancy tax 

funded entity must specify each scheduled activity, program, or event that is directly funded by 

hotel occupancy tax proceeds or has its administrative costs funded in whole or in part by the tax. 

The activity or program must directly relate to enhancing and promoting tourism and the 

convention and hotel industry.
951

 

 

If the city or county delegates to another entity the management or supervision of an activity or 

event funded by the local hotel occupancy tax, each entity that is funded by the tax shall, before 

making an expenditure, specify each scheduled activity, program, or event that is directly funded 

by the tax or has its administrative costs funded in whole or in part by the tax. Further, the list 

must indicate the activities and programs that are directly enhancing and promoting tourism and 

the convention and hotel industry.
952

 For cities, this list of expenditures should be provided to the 

city secretary or the city secretary’s designee.
953

 

                                                 
947

  Id. (Please note that a legislative body such as a city council is limited in the degree to which it may delegate 

its authority to another entity. See, for example, Texas Boll Weevil Eradication Foundation, Inc. v. Lewellen, 

952 S.W.2d 454 (Tex. 1997). See also Andrews v. Wilson, 959 S.W.2d 686 (Tex. App. -- Amarillo, 1998)).  
948

  Id. §§ 351.101(c), 352.1015(a). 
949

  Id. §§ 351.101(d), 352.1015(b). 
950

  Id. §§ 351.101(c), 352.1015(a). 
951

  Id. §§ 351.108(b), 352.109(b).  
952

  Id. §§ 351.108(c), 352.109(c). 
953

  Id. § 351.108(d). 

33

Item 3.



IV. Economic Development Through Tourism 

2020 Economic Development Handbook • Texas Municipal League 

148 

 

Local Hotel Occupancy Tax Reporting 

 
Cities are required to annually report hotel occupancy tax information to the comptroller.

954
 Not 

later than February 20 of each year, a city that imposes a hotel occupancy tax must submit to the 

comptroller: 

 

(1) the rate of the city’s hotel occupancy tax and, if applicable, the rate of the city’s hotel 

occupancy tax supporting a venue project;  

(2) the amount of revenue collected during the city’s preceding fiscal year from the city’s 

hotel occupancy tax and, if applicable, the city’s hotel occupancy tax supporting a venue 

project; and  

(3) the amount and percentage of hotel occupancy tax revenue allocated by the city for 

certain categories of expenditure during the city’s preceding fiscal year.
955

  

Cities must comply with the annual reporting requirements by either submitting the report to the 

comptroller on a form prescribed by the comptroller, or alternatively providing the comptroller a 

direct link to, or a clear statement describing the location of, the information required to be 

reported that is posted on the city’s website.
956

 

 

More information on reporting through the comptroller’s office can be found at: 

https://comptroller.texas.gov/transparency/local/hotel-receipts/. 

 

County Development District 

The Texas Legislature has recognized that it is sometimes advantageous to pursue economic 

development at the county level. The County Development District Act provides counties that 

have a population of 400,000 or less with a means to generate sales tax funds for local economic 

development and tourism-related projects. Such districts are initiated by a petition of landowners 

in the proposed district. Upon approval of the petition by the county, an election is called to gain 

the voters’ consent to create the district and to levy a sales tax to fund district projects. A county 

development district may acquire or dispose of the same sorts of projects and pay the same sorts 

of costs as a Type B economic development corporation. However, a county development 

district project must promote and develop tourism within the county.
957

  

                                                 
954

  Id. § 351.009 
955

  Id § 351.009(a). 
956

  Id. § 351.009(b). 
957

  See Tex. Loc. Gov’t Code §§ 383.002 (“This chapter furthers the public purpose of developing and 

diversifying the economy of this state by providing incentives for the location and development of projects in 

certain counties to attract visitors and tourists.”); 383.003(a) (“[s]mall and medium-sized counties in this 

state need incentives for the development of public improvements to attract visitors and tourists to those 

counties...”); 383.003(b) (“[t]he means and measures authorized by this chapter are in the public interest and 

serve a public purpose of this state ... by providing incentives for the location and development in certain 

counties of this state of projects that attract visitors and tourists ...”); 383.023(5) (a petition proposing a 

county development corporation must state that the district “will serve the public purpose of attracting 

visitors and tourists to the county.”)(emphasis added). See also, Tex. Att’y Gen. Op. No. JC-291 (2000) at 7 

- 10 (A county development district created under Chapter 383 of the Local Government Code is not 

authorized to levy ad valorem taxes.  A county development district may undertake a project only if it is 

consistent with the purpose of Chapter 383 – “providing incentives for the location and development of 

projects in certain counties to attract visitors and tourists.”). 

34

Item 3.

https://comptroller.texas.gov/transparency/local/hotel-receipts/


    

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: October 21, 2020 

PREPARED BY: Thomas Bolt, City Manager 
DEPARTMENT: Administration 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the acceptance of the September 2020 Departmental Reports.  

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

• Police – Ryan Phipps, Chief of Police     

• Development Services – Scott Dunlop, Assistant Development Services Director 

• Community Development – Debbie Charbonneau, Community Development Manager 

• Municipal Court – Sarah Friberg, Court Clerk 

• Public Works – Michael Tuley, Director of Public Works 

• Finance – Lydia Collins, Director of Finance 

 
LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable 

FISCAL IMPACT: Not Applicable 

PRESENTATION:  No 

ATTACHMENTS:  Yes  

• September 2020 Department Monthly Reports 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the City Staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve and accept the September 2020 Departmental 
Reports.     

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION:  Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

35

Item 4.



Manor Police Department
Monthly Council Report

Date of Meeting: 10/21/2020

September 2020

Activity Reported Month Same month Prior year Percentage difference
Calls for Service 1968 2035 3.3↓
Average CFS per day 65.6 67.8 3.2↓
Open Cases 23 20 15↑
Charges Filed 37 35 5.7↑
Alarm Responses 41 44 6.8↓
Drug Cases 4 5 20↓
Family Violence 11 11 NO CHANGE
Arrests Fel/Misd 10Fel/27Misd 14Fel/21MIsd 52.3↓ Fel/28.5↑Misd
Animal Control 45 35 28.5↑
Traffic Accidents 27 57 52.6↓
DWI Arrests 7 9 22.2↓
Traffic  Violations 299 814 63.2↓
Impounds 61 74 17.5↓
Victim Services cases 63 62 1.6↑
Total Victims Served 46 58 20.6↓
Ordinance Violations 15 29 48.2↓
Laboratory Submissions 8 21 62↓

Notes:

*DNA- DATA NOT AVAILABLE

Patrol Car Rental
Last Month $1,121.25
YTD $21,359.25

Ryan S. Phipps - Chief of Police

36

Item 4.



 Description Projects Valuation Fees Detail

Certificate of Occupancy 1 $292.00 Queens Braiding

Commercial Sign 2 $18,000.00 $391.42

Educational New 1 $668,187.00 $3,497.80 New Tech Concession Stands

Moving a Structure 1 $157.00

Residential Accessory 1 $5,000.00 $107.00

Residential Deck/Patio 2 $29,600.00 $529.00

Residential Electric 9 $140,297.00 $963.00

Residential Foundation Repair 4 $43,220.00 $388.00

Residential Irrigation 26 $57,886.12 $2,782.00

Residential Mechanical/HVAC 2 $2,705.00 $214.00

Residential New 39 $11,555,413.35 $248,438.40

Residential Plumbing 1 $1,200.00 $107.00

Residential Swimming Pool/Spa 1 $47,000.00 $272.00

Temporary Sign 1 $62.00

Totals 91 $12,568,508.47 $258,200.62

Total Certificate of Occupancies Issued: 33

Total Inspections(Comm & Res): 1,696

Tom Bolt, City Manager

September 1-30, 2020

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT REPORT

PROJECT VALUATION AND FEE REPORT

37

Item 4.



DEPARTMENT OF DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

THOMAS BOLT, DIRECTOR

*Charts displayed at different scales

September 2020

100

91

0 50 100 150 200 250

ALL PERMITS ISSUED

2020

2019

1571

1696

0 300 600 900 1200 1500 1800

INSPECTIONS

2020

2019

65

33

0 20 40 60 80 100

COs ISSUED

2020

2019

41

39

0 50 100 150

RESIDENTIAL NEW PERMITS

2020

2019

38

Item 4.



    MEMO 
To: Mayor and City Council Members 

From:   Debbie Charbonneau, Community Development Manager 

Date:  October 21, 2020 

 RE:  September Report  

 
 
COMMUNITY MEETINGS 
Café 290 Meeting 
Regional Partners ZOOM Meeting 
That Taco Stand, Brain Freeze and Laura Dominguez Meeting 
Frontier Bank and Area Realtors Lunch Meeting/Speaking 
 
BUSINESS VISITS 
Envy Nails & Spa   Shipley’s Donuts   Chokdee 
Pho Yes    Beer 30    Manor Donuts 
Solar Nails    Jack’s Barber Shop   Manor Tires 
Rocio’s Hair Salon   Michele’s Salon & Spa  Discoteca 
Golden Bejing    Gonzalez Hair Salon   Chuck Wagon 
La Sabroza    La Fogata China’s Kitchen  La Pasadita 
Taqueria La Parrillita   That Taco Stand   Tamale Addiction 
 
EVENTS 
Leadership Manor class #1 – City Government Day.  
Shop Small Shop Local Business Visits. 
Governor’s Veteran Owned Small Business Webinar. 
AAUL, City & MISD Partnership Regarding PPE Distribution in Manor Call. 
 
OTHER DUTIES 
Texas Downtown Association Education Programming Call. 
Texas Downtown Association Conference Planning ZOOM Meeting. 
Texas Downtown Association Nominating Committee ZOOM Meeting. 
Central Texas Regional Partners ZOOM Meeting. 
 

39

Item 4.



40

Item 4.



     MEMO 
 

 
 
 

To: Mayor and City Council Members 

From:  Mike Tuley, Director of Public Works  

Date: October 21,2020 

RE:  September Monthly Report 
 
 

Public Works Department 
 

Street and Public, Parks, and Maintenance Department 
 
In the month of September, the Public Parks and Maintenance Department mowed all city facilities, 
alleys, and right of ways. They cleaned and maintained all city’s facilities and parks. They performed all 
maintenance on city vehicles and heavy equipment. In September, the Street Department repaired streets, 
curbs and signs.  
                                  

Water and Wastewater Department 
 
In September, the Water Department performed daily maintenance on the water system, repaired water 
mains, set water meters and tested the water daily. In September, the Wastewater Department performed 
daily maintenance on the wastewater plant.  They cleaned and unstopped wastewater mains.   
                                       

Water Production & Purchase 
 
In the month of September 12% of the water we supplied to our residents was from our wells, and we 
purchased 88% from EPCOR and Manville WSC. In September, the estimated population of residents 
in the City of Manor is 15,187. Estimated population for ShadowGlen is 4,488 residents. 
 

     Subdivision Inspections 
 

 
• Street Inspections- 13 
• Water Inspections- 2 
• Wastewater Inspections- 3 

 
 
 

41

Item 4.



 

Page 2 of 5 
 

      
          
Streets and Parks Monthly Report September 2020  
 
 
Daily Duties and Projects 9-1-2020 / 9-30-2020 
 
 
- Asphalt repair at 12013 Waterford Run Way. 
 
- Curb raised at 12013 Waterford Run Way. 
 
- Trimming trees in alleys in Old Town. 
 
- Hamilton Point Park fence installed for play area. 
 
- Repaired potholes in Old Town. 
 
-Continued street pavement repairs on Wheeler St. between N. Caldwell St. and N. Bastrop St.  
  
  Street will be paved by contractor on October 1st.  
 
- Weekly irrigation checks. 
 
- Play ground and play scape monthly safety checks. 
 
- Scheduled weekly Park mowing maintenance completed. 
 
- Friday Afternoons Bulk Drop Off for city residence.  
 
- Scheduled weekly Park rounds @ park facilities completed. 
 
- Scheduled weekly (ROW) Right of Way mowing completed. 
 
- Weekly vehicle & equipment checks and maintenance.  
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

42

Item 4.



 

Page 3 of 5 
 

Inspections/Warranties/New subdivision Walkthroughs and Pre-Construction meetings. 

 

The city will continue their regular site inspections to ensure all contractors are following the rules that 
are in place. 

Presidential Heights Phase 5  homes are being built.  

Presidential Heights Phase 3&4 – homes are being built. 

Stonewater North Phase 3- Homes are being built.   

Stonewater North Phase 2- Homes are being built. 

Lagos Phase 1- Homes are continuing to go up and regular inspections are done on a weekly basis.   

Manor Commons- phase 1- 1year walkthrough has been done, contractor in process of repairs. 

Manor Commons – phase1 homes are still being built. 

Manor Commons Apartments – still in building process. 

Ring Drive – 1year walkthrough has been done, contractor in process of repairs. 

Manor Heights – Phase I Sec. 1&2 Contractor in development process.  

Manor Heights – Phase II Sec. 1 Contractor in development process.  

Grass Dale Manor Apartment - is in development process. 

Manor Grand Apartments - is in development process.  

 

 
 
 

43

Item 4.



 

Page 4 of 5 
 

Water Monthly Report September 2020 
 
 
For the month of September, the Water Department had 30 service calls, 5 repair jobs, and 5 maintenance jobs 
and 2 Inspections. 
 
Service calls include: Low water pressure calls, meter leaks, line locates, brown water calls, disconnect water 
services, and connected water services. 
 
Repairs  
 
Lagrange and Lane NE corner - repaired a 2" main break by FZ,CD,AM 9-4-20. 
 
207 East Burton - repaired a 1" service line break by CD,AM 9-15-20. 
 
310 West Parsons- repaired a 3/4 service line break by CD,AM 9-16-20. 
 
402 West Parsons City yard - repaired leak on 6" Cla - valve in city yard pump room by FZ,CD 9-1-20. 
 
HWY 290 and Lexington SW corner-repaired fire hydrant truck ran over- replaced the break away 
kit by FZ,CD,AM 9-4-20. 
 
Maintenance 
 
Aqua Tech Lab - drop off first set of five Bac T samples at Aqua Tech Lab by JT,DD 9-15-20. 
 
West Wheeler end of street - flow test fire hydrant with Rob Stephenson (Capital Hydrant LLC) 
by JT,CD 9-17-20. 
 
Gregg Manor and Hill Ln -flow test fire hydrant with Rob Stephenson (Capital Hydrant LLC) 
by JT,CD 9-17-20. 
 
Genome Drive - flow test for Manor Grand Apts. by Chad Loosemore with Brigade Fire Solutions  
by DD,JT 9-25-20. 
 
Aqua Tech Lab - drop off second set of five Bac T samples at Aqua Tech Lab by JT,DD 9-23-20. 
  
Inspections 
 
Manor Heights Phase 1 section 2 - pressure test water main with JL Gray Construction by JT,DD 9-8-20. 
 
Manor Heights Phase section 1 - Take Bac T samples - results came back good on 9-29-20 by JT. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  44

Item 4.



 

Page 5 of 5 
 

Wastewater Monthly Report September 2020 
 
 
For the month of September, the Wastewater Department had 3 service calls, 5 repair jobs, 6 maintenance jobs 
and 3 inspections. 
 
Service Calls 
 
100 Blk East Parsons - sewer clog - jetted main and cleared main by DD,AM 9-10-20. 
14902 Breccia - sewer clog - removed toilet paper from service line the line cleared by AB 9-14-20. 
100 Blk West Parsons - sewer clog - jetted main and cleared by JT,DD,AM 9-24-20. 
 
 
Repairs 
 
Wildhorse Creek Lift Station - replaced bad float in lift station- low level float and  
pulled pump number 2 and cleaned rags out by FZ,CD 9-1-20. 
Presidential Heights Lift Station - replaced bad float control relays relay by JT,AM 9-1-20. 
Tower and Suncrest SE corner - repaired cracked manhole -recemented around  
ring and lid by FZ,AM 9-14-20. 
Carillon Way from Ship Bell to Ring Dr. - hydro jet main for maintenance by FZ,AM,AB 9-21-20. 
128129 Ring Drive - called locates to excavate where city side meets the customer side. 
Wastewater service...made repairs where customer side meets city side and installed  
a new clean out and lid by FZ,CD,AM 9-28-20. 
 
 
Maintenance 
 
Wilbarger Plant - changed bottle number 1 - 150 lb. cl2 bottle changed by CD,JT 9-4-20. 
Wilbarger Plant- grease sand filter bridge by JT,GS 9-8-20. 
Wilbarger Plant - changed bottle number 2 - 150 lb. cl2 bottle changed by CD,JT 9-12-20. 
Wilbarger Plant - changed bottle number 1 - 150 lb. cl2 bottle changed by CD,JT 9-14-20. 
Wilbarger Plant - ordered 5 15o lb. cl2 bottles from Brenntag for plant by JT 9-30-20. 
Wilbarger Plant - ordered Calcium Hypochlorite Tablets‚ 100 lb. pail for new treatment plant 
by JT 9-30-20. 
 
Inspections 
 
Manor Heights - phase 1 section 1 - pulled mandrels with JL Gray Construction passed by DD 9-1-20. 
Manor Heights - phase 1 section 1 - finish pulling mandrels for section 1 with JL Gray Construction  
passed by DD 9-8-20. 
Manor Grand Apartments on Genome Drive - tri-state utilities and plumbing tied into 
the existing wastewater manhole by JT 9-14-20. 
 
 
 
 

45

Item 4.



CASH AND INVESTMENTS

 GENERAL 

FUND 

UTILITY 

FUND

DEBT 

SERVICE 

FUND

SPECIAL 

REVENUE 

FUNDS

CAPITAL 

PROJECTS 

FUND TOTAL

Unrestricted:

Cash for operations 9,729,846$   8,297,727$   -$                 18,027,573$    

Restricted:

Tourism 600,450          600,450           

Court security and technology 19,782          19,782             

Rose Hill PID 452,743          452,743           

Customer Deposits 690,753        690,753           

Park 8,930            8,930               

Debt service 873,479         873,479           

Capital Projects

Water and sewer improvements 1,034,294     10,380,941     11,415,235      

TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS 9,758,558$   10,022,774$ 873,479$       11,434,133$   -$                 32,088,943$    

CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

As Of September, 2020

Unrestricted Cash 
24%

Other Restricted 
Cash
4%

Debt Service
4%

Water and Sewer 
improvements

68%

Overview of funds:
$129,081.28 sales tax collected
GF is in a favorable status. 
UF is in a favorable status
DSF is in a favorable status
CIP Fund is in a favorable status

46

Item 4.



  AGENDA ITEM NO.  

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: October 21, 2020 

PREPARED BY: Thomas Bolt, City Manager 
DEPARTMENT: Administration 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an engagement letter for litigation legal services. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

 

LEGAL REVIEW: Yes 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

PRESENTATION:  No 

ATTACHMENTS:  Yes  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the City staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve an engagement letter for litigation legal services.  

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

47

Item 5.



  AGENDA ITEM NO.  

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: October 21, 2020 

PREPARED BY: Thomas Bolt, City Manager 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the Second Amendment to Development Agreement (Manor 
Heights). 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

The Development Agreement approved on November 7, 2018 needs to be updated to reflect “current conditions” 
now that the City is obtaining bids for the first phase of the Wastewater Treatment Plant and construction of the 
Project is imminent. The Second Amendment to the Development Agreement provides additional detail on 
construction of wastewater infrastructure and roadway infrastructure and sets forth, among other things, phased 
construction of such infrastructure, how infrastructure will be paid for between anticipated PID bond proceeds 
and Developer funds, and fiscal surety to be provided to City to insure completion of said improvements. 

 
LEGAL REVIEW: Yes 

FISCAL IMPACT: No 

PRESENTATION:  No 

ATTACHMENTS:  Yes  

• Second Amendment to Development Agreement 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the City staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve the Second Amendment to Development 
Agreement (Manor Heights). 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

48

Item 6.



 
 

 1 
   
 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
(Manor Heights) 

 
 

THIS SECOND AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (this “Second 
Amendment”) is dated effective _________________________, 2020 (the “Second Amendment 
Effective Date”) and is entered into between the CITY OF MANOR, a Texas home-rule municipal 
corporation (the “City”) and FORESTAR (USA) REAL ESTATE GROUP, INC., a Texas 
corporation (the “Developer”). The City and Developer are sometimes referred to herein as a 
“Party” and collectively as the “Parties.” 
 

RECITALS: 
 

A. Sky Village Kimbro Estates, LLC, a Texas limited liability company (“Sky 
Village”) and RHOF, LLC, a Texas limited liability company (“RHOF”) (collectively, the 
“Original Developer”) and the City previously entered into that certain Development Agreement 
dated effective November 7, 2018 (the “Agreement”), as was amended by that certain First 
Amendment to Development Agreement dated November 6, 2019 (the “First Amendment”) for 
that certain Project (as defined therein) located in the City of Manor, Travis County, Texas, as more 
particularly described in the Agreement. 

 
B. Developer now owns all the Property (as defined in the Agreement), save and 

except the Commercial Parcels, herein defined, which are now owned by RHOF, successor-in-
interest to Sky Village. 

 
C. The Original Developer assigned all of its rights under the Development Agreement 

pertaining to the Property (save and except the Commercial Parcels) to Developer. 
 
D. City and Developer desire to modify and amend the Agreement in certain respects, 

as more particularly set forth in this Second Amendment. 
 

AGREEMENT: 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, City and Developer hereby agree as follows: 

 
1) Incorporation of Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein and 

made a part of this Second Amendment to the same extent as if set forth herein in full. 
 

2) Capitalized Terms.  All capitalized terms in this Second Amendment shall have the 
same meanings as in the Agreement unless expressly provided otherwise herein. 
 

3) Commercial Parcels.  The following is hereby added as a definition to Section 1.02 
of the Agreement: 

 

49

Item 6.



 
 

2 
 

“Commercial Parcels” means the parcels of land within the Project which are 
intended to be developed for commercial uses and are more particularly described on 
Exhibit “A-2” attached hereto and made a part hereof.  
 
4) Payment of Design Fees.  Section 10.01(d) of the Agreement shall be deleted and 

replaced in its entirety with the following: 
  
“Developer has contributed $405,724.53 towards the design of the Overall Plant. These 

Costs shall be reimbursed to Developer through the PID.” 
 
5) Wastewater Treatment Plant.  (a) The first paragraph of Section 10.01 (a) is hereby 

deleted and replaced in its entirety with the following: 
 
“(a) The Developer shall fund, finance and pay for the cost of designing and constructing  
a 400,000 gpd wastewater treatment plant (the “Overall Plant”) located on the portion of 
the Property depicted on Exhibit “G” attached hereto, as provided in this Article, subject 
to reimbursement for such costs as provided herein.  The Parties acknowledge and agree 
that the Overall Plant will be constructed in two phases. The first phase of the Overall 
Plant (“Interim Phase I”) will consist of a 200,000 gpd wastewater treatment plant and 
the second phase of the Plant (the “Interim Phase II”) will add in an additional capacity 
of 200,000 gpd to get the Overall Plant to its intended size of 400,000 gpd.” 
 
(b) Any references to “Plant” in the Agreement shall be deemed to refer to Interim 
Phase I unless expressly stated otherwise.  
 
(c) Prior to finalizing any plans for Interim Phase I or Interim Phase II, the City shall 
allow Developer’s engineer to conduct a peer review of said plans.” 
 

6) Construction Plans (Wastewater).  Section 10.03(a) is hereby deleted and replaced 
in its entirety with the following: 

 
“(a) As more particularly described in Article XIII below and on Exhibit “L” attached 

hereto, it is anticipated that PID Bonds will be issued to fund a portion of the costs of the Offsite 
Wastewater Improvements.  Pursuant to Article XIII below, Developer has agreed to secure 
payment and performance bonds for Interim Phase I and Interim Phase II.  If prior to 
commencement of construction of Interim Phase I and/or Interim Phase II, as applicable, there are 
PID Bond proceeds within the applicable account of the Indenture sufficient to pay for completion 
of Interim Phase I and/or Interim Phase II, as applicable, then the Developer shall not be required 
to post any additional fiscal security for such improvements.  If PID Bonds have not been issued 
prior to the commencement of construction of Interim Phase I and/or Interim Phase II, as 
applicable, then Developer shall pay all invoices submitted by the City from their contractors who 
are constructing the applicable portion of the Overall Plant, within thirty (30) days of receipt of 
said invoice. Any amounts paid by Developer pursuant to the foregoing sentence shall be referred 
to herein as “WWTP Developer Payments”.  When PID Bonds are issued, if the PID Bond 
proceeds within the applicable account of the Indenture  are not sufficient to complete Interim 
Phase I and/or Interim Phase II, as applicable, then Developer will provide to or for the benefit of 

50

Item 6.



 
 

3 
 

City, as security for the performance of such obligation: (1) a letter of credit from a reputable 
financial institution in a form reasonably acceptable to the City; or (2) a cash payment in an amount 
equal to (i) 110% of the then-projected cost of any such unconstructed segment of Interim Phase I 
and/or Interim Phase II, as applicable  (taking into account any WWTP Developer Payments) less 
(ii) the amount of PID Bond proceeds within the applicable account of the Indenture dedicated to 
pay for the completion of Interim Phase I and/or Interim Phase II, as applicable.  If a letter of credit 
is posted, the Developer shall have the right to reduce the amount of the letter of credit periodically 
as construction of the Offsite Wastewater Improvements progresses. 

For the remainder of the Offsite Wastewater Improvements (i.e. all Offsite Wastewater 
Improvements other than the Overall Plant), the following provisions shall apply: 

If prior to commencement of construction of the Offsite Wastewater Improvements (i.e. all 
Offsite Wastewater Improvements other than the Overall Plant), there are PID Bond proceeds 
within the applicable account of the Indenture sufficient to pay for completion of that particular 
Offsite Wastewater Improvement (i.e. all Offsite Wastewater Improvements other than the Overall 
Plant), it is intended that the Developer not be required to post fiscal security for the applicable 
Offsite Wastewater Improvement.  If at any time there are not sufficient funds in the Project Fund 
to complete the portion of the Offsite Wastewater Improvements (i.e. all Offsite Wastewater 
Improvements other than the Overall Plant) being funded by the PID, the Developer will provide 
to or for the benefit of City, as security for the performance of such obligation (1) a letter of credit 
from a reputable financial institution in a form reasonably acceptable to the City; or (2) a payment 
and performance bond for the benefit of the City (or any combination thereof), in an amount not 
less than 120% of the then-projected cost of any such unconstructed segment of the portion of the 
Offsite Wastewater Improvements being funded by the PID.  Developer shall have the right to 
draw down on the security posted as construction of the Offsite Wastewater Improvements 
progresses.” 

7) Public Improvement District. Pursuant to Paragraph 8 of the First Amendment, 
Developer notified the City on January 21, 2020 of its desire for the City to issue Upfront PID 
Bonds.  

8) Construction of Overall Plant. The fourth paragraph of Article XIII shall be deleted 
and replaced in its entirety with the following: 

 
“Unless the completion of Interim Phase I is caused by Developer delays, 
the Parties agree that construction of Interim Phase I shall be completed 
fifteen (15) months from the date the Developer deposits with the City or 
an escrow agent agreed upon by the Parties a payment and performance 
bond in a form acceptable to the City and in an amount equal to 110% of 
the cost to construct Interim Phase I. If there are delays in the construction 
of Interim Phase I not caused by the City, an extension for completion of 
the Interim Phase I shall be agreed upon by letter agreement between the 
Parties. 
 

51

Item 6.



 
 

4 
 

Developer shall provide the Interim Phase II P&P Bond (defined below) to 
the City (or other party designated by the City) within sixty (60) days of 
Developer’s receipt of the City’s written notice that Interim Phase I has 
reached 65% capacity.  Unless the completion of Interim Phase II is caused 
by Developer delays, the Parties agree that construction of Interim Phase II 
shall be completed (i) fifteen (15) months from the date the Developer 
deposits with the City or an escrow agent agreed upon by the Parties a 
payment and performance bond in a form acceptable to the City and in an 
amount equal to 110% of the cost to design (if design has not been 
completed) and construct Interim Phase II (“Interim Phase II P&P 
Bond”). If there are delays in the design and construction of Interim Phase 
II not caused by the City, an extension for completion of Interim Phase II 
shall be agreed upon by letter agreement between the Parties.” 

 
 9) Design Guidelines.  
 
 (a)  Solely with respect to Manor Heights South, the following shall apply: 
 

  (i)  The masonry requirements for residential units shall be all brick or stone  
  on the front and brick or stone on portions of the sides. Hardie Board, or similar  
  products shall not be used to meet the masonry requirements. 

 
  (ii) The minimum lot size shall be 6,000 square feet and the minimum living  

   area per residential unit shall be 1,500 square feet. 
 
 (b) For the Property (save and except Manor Heights South), the design standards 
attached hereto as Schedule I shall be followed. 
 

 
10) Old Kimbro Road.   
 
(a) The City hereby agrees to cooperate with Developer on the addition of the portion 

of Old Kimbro Road that is located within the Project into the boundaries of the District. The City 
and Developer shall work diligently and in good faith to complete the addition of the portion of 
Old Kimbro Road that is located within the Project into the boundaries of the District.  

 
(b) The City agrees to commence proceedings to vacate the portion of Old Kimbro 

Road located within the boundaries of the Project within thirty (30) days after satisfaction of the 
following:  (i) Developer shall execute and deposit a special warranty deed for the portion of the 
MAD4 Roadway that is owned by Developer and located within the boundaries of the Project (the 
“ROW Deed”) into escrow with an escrow agent selected by the City and Developer, (ii) the City, 
the Developer and the escrow agent  shall enter into an escrow agreement in a form mutually 
agreeable to said parties, (iii) Developer and the City shall enter into a Completion Agreement 
(herein so called) in substantially the same form as Exhibit “P” attached hereto, and (iv) Developer 
shall post fiscal security guaranteeing the completion of the portion of the MAD4 Roadway 
described in Section 6.05(a)(1) of the Agreement  in the form of a payment and performance bond 

52

Item 6.



 
 

5 
 

for the benefit of the City, in an amount not less than 120% of the estimated cost of such applicable 
portion of the MAD4 Roadway.  Upon vacation and conveyance of such portion of Old Kimbro 
Road, that portion of vacated right-of-way shall automatically become a part of the Property under 
this Agreement.  

 
11) Notices. The notice address for Developer in Section 21.01 shall be updated to 

include the following: 
Forestar (USA) Real Estate Group 
Attn: John Maberry 
10700 Pecan Park Blvd. Suite 150 
Austin, Texas 78750 
Telephone: (512) 433-5231    
Email: JohnMaberry@forestar.com 

 
12) Exhibits.  Section 23.07 is hereby updated to add “Exhibit A-2: Commercial 

Parcels”. In addition, Exhibit “A-2” attached to this Second Amendment is hereby added to and 
incorporated into the Agreement.  

 
13) Ratification of Agreement/Conflict. All terms and conditions of the Agreement are 

hereby ratified and affirmed, as modified by this Second Amendment. To the extent there is any 
inconsistency between the Agreement and this Second Amendment, the provisions of this Second 
Amendment shall control.  

 
14) No Waiver. Neither City’s nor Developer’s execution of this Second Amendment 

shall (a) constitute a waiver of any of its rights and remedies under the Agreement or at law with 
respect to the other party’s obligations under the Agreement or (b) be construed as a bar to any 
subsequent enforcement of any of its rights or remedies against the other party. 

 
15) Governing Law. This Second Amendment shall be construed and enforced in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Texas. 
 
16) Entire Agreement. The Parties hereto agree and understand that no oral agreements, 

or understandings, shall be binding, unless reduced to a writing which is signed by said Parties. 
The Parties hereto agree and understand that this Second Amendment shall be binding on them, 
their personal representatives, heirs, successors and assigns. 

 
17) Counterparts. This Second Amendment may be executed in multiple counterparts, 

each of which will be deemed an original, and all of which will constitute one and the same 
agreement. 
 
 
 

[Signature pages follow]

53

Item 6.



 
 

 6 
   
 

EXECUTED in multiple originals, and in full force and effect as of the Second 
Amendment Effective Date. 
 
      CITY: 
 
      CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS, 

a Texas home-rule municipal corporation 
 

By: ___________________________ 
       Dr. Larry Wallace Jr., Mayor  
Attest: 
 
By:  _________________________ 
Name: Lluvia T. Almaraz 
Title: City Secretary  
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
By: _________________________ 
Name: Veronica Rivera 
Title: Assistant City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of _____________, 2020, 
by Dr. Larry Wallace Jr., Mayor of the City of Manor, Texas, a Texas home-rule municipal 
corporation, on behalf of said corporation. 

 
            
(SEAL)     Notary Public, State of Texas 

54

Item 6.



 
 

7 
 

DEVELOPER: 
 
      

FORESTAR (USA) REAL ESTATE GROUP,  
INC., a Delaware corporation 
 
By: _______________________________ 
Name: _______________________________ 
Title: _______________________________ 

 

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of _____________, 2020, by 
______________, ___________ of the FORESTAR (USA) REAL ESTATE GROUP, INC., a 
Delaware corporation, on behalf of said corporation. 
 
      _________________________ 
(SEAL)     Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
  

55

Item 6.



 
 

8 
 

DEVELOPER: 
 
      

RHOF, LLC, 
a Texas limited liability company 
 
By: _______________________________ 
Name: _______________________________ 
Title: _______________________________ 

 

 

THE STATE OF __________ § 
 
COUNTY OF ____________ § 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of _____________, 2020, by 
______________, ___________ of RHOF LLC, a Texas limited liability company, on behalf of 
said company. 
 
      _________________________ 
(SEAL)     Notary Public, State of ______ 
 
 
 
 
 
 

56

Item 6.



 
 

9 
 

Exhibit A-2 
Commercial Parcels 

 

 

57

Item 6.



 
 

10 
 

Exhibit P 
Form of Completion Agreement 

 
[see attached] 

 
  

58

Item 6.



 

 - 1 - 
 

COMPLETION AGREEMENT 

THIS COMPLETION AGREEMENT (herein, this “Agreement”) is made effective [DATE], 
2020, by and between FORESTAR (USA) REAL ESTATE GROUP, INC., a Delaware 
corporation (together with its successors, assigns, the “Developer”), and the CITY OF MANOR, 
TEXAS (the “City”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Developer is the majority owner and developer of lands within the boundary 
of the Manor Heights Public Improvement District (the “District”) established by the City, as more 
particularly described in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated by referenced herein (the 
“Property”); 

WHEREAS, the Property is subject to that certain Development Agreement dated as of 
November 7, 2018  (as amended, the “Development Agreement”); 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Development Agreement, the City and the Developer have 
agreed to certain terms relating to the construction and funding of certain infrastructure 
improvements, including but not limited to the MAD4 Roadway (the “Designated 
Improvements”);  

WHEREAS, the Developer is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Forestar Group Inc. (“Forestar 
Group”), a publicly traded residential lot development company listed on the New York Stock 
Exchange under the ticker symbol “FOR”;  

WHEREAS, in order to ensure that the Designated Improvements are completed and funding 
is available in a timely manner to provide for their completion, the Developer has agreed in the 
Second Amendment to the Development Agreement to enter into this Agreement to provide further 
assurances to the City that the Designated Improvements will be completed and Developer has the 
funds to complete the Designated Improvements; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, based upon the above recitals and other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt of which and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the 
Developer and the City, agree as follows: 

1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS; CAPITALIZATION.  The recitals stated above are 
true and correct and are incorporated by reference as a material part of this Agreement.  Capitalized 
terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Development 
Agreement. 

2. COMPLETION OF AUTHORIZED IMPROVEMENTS.    

(i) In addition to all of the other terms and conditions set forth in the Development 
Agreement, in order to assure the completion of the Designated Improvements, the Developer 
agrees, no later than ten (10) business days after written request of the City, to provide evidence 
to the City (“Evidence of Available Funds”) that sufficient funds are available to the Developer 
to fund the completion of the Designated Improvements.  In response to any such request, the 

59

Item 6.



 

 - 2 - 
 

Developer may provide Evidence of Available Funds by timely delivering a letter that directs the 
City to that portion of Forestar Group’s most recent filing with the United States Securities and 
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) stating either that Forestar Group (a) is in compliance with 
the covenants, limitations and restrictions in its unsecured revolving credit facility, as described in 
Forestar Group’s 2019 Form 10-K annual report filed with the SEC, or (b) maintains cash and 
equivalents in an amount that equals or exceeds the estimated amount to complete the Designated 
Improvements. 

(ii) The City has no responsibility for and no duty to verify the accuracy of any 
Evidence of Available Funds submitted pursuant to this Section 2.   

3. DEVELOPER DEFAULT; PROTECTION AGAINST THIRD PARTY INTERFERENCE. 

In the event the Developer does not comply with the terms of this Agreement, the City or 
its designee shall have the right to seek specific performance from a court of competent jurisdiction 
in order to ensure the Designated Improvements are completed as soon thereafter as reasonably 
possible. 

4. AMENDMENTS.  Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in this 
Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both the City and 
the Developer. 

5. AUTHORIZATION; CONSENT.  The execution of this Agreement has been duly 
authorized by the City and the Developer, and both the City and the Developer have full power 
and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this instrument.   

6. NOTICES.  All notices, requests, consents and other communications required or 
permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be (as elected by the person giving 
such notice) hand-delivered by prepaid express overnight courier or messenger service, facsimile 
or, or mailed (airmail if international) by registered or certified (postage prepaid), return receipt 
requested with delivery via email confirming mailing thereof, to the following addresses: 

City: 
 

City of Manor 
Attn:  City Manager 
105 East Eggleston Street 
Manor, Texas 78653 

 
With copy to:  
  

The Knight Law Firm, LLP 
Attn: Paige Saenz 
223 West Anderson Lane, Suite A-105 
Austin, Texas 78752    
 

Developer:  

60

Item 6.



 

 - 3 - 
 

 
Forestar (USA) Real Estate Group, Inc. 
Attn: John Maberry & Matt Stark 
10700 Pecan Park Blvd. Suite 150 
Austin, Texas  78750 

With a copy to: 
 

Metcalfe Wolff Stuart Williams, LLP 
Attn: Talley J. Williams 
221 West 6th Street, Suite 1300 
Austin, Texas 78701 

  

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any mailed notice sent in the manner provided above 
shall be deemed received three (3) business days after delivery or mailing.  Notices delivered after 
5:00 PM (at the place of delivery) or on a non-business day shall be deemed received the next business 
day.  If any time for giving notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-
business day, the notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day.  Saturdays, 
Sundays, and legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as 
business days.  Any party or other person to whom notices are to be sent or copied may notify the 
other parties and addressees of any changes in name or address to which notices shall be sent by 
providing the same on five (5) days written notice to the parties and addressees set forth herein. 

7. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the City, 
and the Developer, and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to or for the 
benefit of any third party not a formal party to this Agreement.  Nothing in this Agreement 
expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or corporation, 
other than the City and the Developer, any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this 
Agreement or any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the provisions, 
representations, covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to the sole 
benefit of and shall be binding upon the City and the Developer and their respective 
representatives, successors, and assigns.   

8. SUCCESSORS.  The rights and obligations created by this Agreement shall be 
binding upon and inure to the benefit of Developer, and its successors and assigns, subject to 
Section 15 below. 

9. ASSIGNMENT.  This Agreement may be assigned by Developer to a party who is 
acquiring all or a majority of the Property owned by Developer provided that the Developer first 
obtains the prior written approval of the City Council, such consent not to be unreasonably 
withheld. 

10. CONSTRUCTION OF TERMS; CONFLICT WITH FINANCING AGREEMENT.  
Whenever used the singular number shall include the plural, the plural the singular; the use of any 
gender shall include all genders, as the context requires; and the disjunctive shall be construed as 
the conjunctive, the conjunctive as the disjunctive, as the context requires.  To the extent there is 
a conflict between the terms of this Agreement and the Development Agreement, the Development 

61

Item 6.



 

 - 4 - 
 

Agreement shall control. To the extent there is a conflict between the terms of this Agreement and 
the PID Financing Agreement to be entered into covering the District, the PID Financing 
Agreement shall control.   

11. CONTROLLING LAW.  This Agreement and the provisions contained in this 
Agreement shall be construed, interpreted, and controlled according to the laws of the State of 
Texas. 

12. SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions 
of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions of this 
Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or unenforceable. 

13. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY.  The descriptive headings in this Agreement 
are for convenience only and shall not control nor affect the meaning or construction of any of the 
provisions of this Agreement. 

14. COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, 
each of which when executed and delivered shall be an original; however, all such counterparts 
together shall constitute, but one and the same instrument.  Signature and acknowledgment pages, 
if any, may be detached from the counterparts and attached to a single copy of this document to 
physically form one document. 

15. COVENANT AND RECORDATION.  The Developer, as the developer and the majority 
owner of lands within the District at the time of the execution of this Agreement, agrees that the 
obligations imposed upon it by this Agreement are valid and enforceable and shall be covenants 
running with the lands described in Exhibit A hereto, creating an obligation and one which is 
binding upon successor owners and assigns.  The Developer shall record this Agreement in the 
Public Records of Travis County, Texas, against the lands owned by the Developer at the time of 
execution of this Agreement.  Once the Developer has completed all the Designated Improvements 
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement and the Development Agreement, the Developer shall 
notify the City, the City shall record, in the public records, a release and satisfaction of its 
obligations under this Agreement (the “Completion Agreement Release”).  The form of the 
Completion Agreement Release is attached hereto as Exhibit B. This Agreement, when recorded, 
shall be binding upon the Developer and the City and their successors and assigns as permitted by 
this Agreement and upon the Property; however, this Agreement shall not be binding upon, and 
shall not constitute any encumbrance to title as to, any end-user or unaffiliated homebuilder 
except for land use and development regulations that apply to such lots. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto execute this Agreement and further agree that it 
shall take effect as of the date first above written. 

 
[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

62

Item 6.



 

 - 5 - 
 

CITY: 
 

CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS 
 
 

 By: ____________________________________ 
      Name: ____________________________________ 

Title: ____________________________________ 

 
 
STATE OF TEXAS   §     
      § 
COUNTY OF ___________   § 
 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ______________, 20__, by 
_____________________, as _______________________ of the City of Manor, on behalf of the 
City. 

 
 
 
[SEAL]       _________________________________ 

Notary Public    
Commission Expires: _______________ 

 

63

Item 6.



 

 - 6 - 
 

DEVELOPER: 
 

FORESTAR (USA) REAL ESTATE GROUP, 
INC., a Delaware corporation   

 
      By:         

Name:         
Title:         

 
 
 
 

STATE OF TEXAS  § 
    § 
COUNTY OF _________ § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on _______________, 20__ by 
_________________ as _______________ of Forestar (USA) Real Estate Group, Inc., a 
Delaware corporation, on behalf of said corporation. 
 

 
 
___________________________________ 
Notary Public, State of Texas 

 
 
 
 
AFTER RECORDING PLEASE RETURN TO: 
 
City of Manor 
Attn: City Secretary 
105 E. Eggleston Street 
Manor, Texas 78653 
 

64

Item 6.



 

 -A-1 - 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY 
 

 
 

  

65

Item 6.



 

 -A-2 - 
 

  

66

Item 6.



 

 - B-1 - 

EXHIBIT B 
 

COMPLETION AGREEMENT RELEASE 
 

 The CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS (the “City”), hereby acknowledges receipt of 
notification of the completion of the Designated Improvements in accordance with Sections _ and 
_ of the Completion Agreement (the “Completion Agreement”) by and between the City and 
FORESTAR (USA) REAL ESTATE GROUP, INC., a Delaware corporation (the “Developer”).  
 
 The Completion Agreement was recorded in the Public Records of Travis County, Texas 
under Instrument No. _____________ against the real property more particularly described therein 
and incorporated by referenced herein. 
 
 Developer and its successors and assigns shall have no further obligations, duties or 
liabilities under the Completion Agreement, the City hereby releases, waives and forever 
discharges the Developer from all obligations, duties or liabilities of whatever nature arising under 
or in connection with the Completion Agreement.   

 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

  

67

Item 6.



 

  - B-2 - 
 

CITY: 
 

CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS 
 
 

 By: ____________________________________ 
      Name: ____________________________________ 

Title: ____________________________________ 

 
 
STATE OF TEXAS    §     
      § 
COUNTY OF ___________   § 
 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ______________, 20__, by 
_____________________, as _______________________ of the City of Manor, on behalf of the 
City. 

 
 
 
[SEAL]       _________________________________ 

Notary Public    
Commission Expires: _______________ 

 
 

68

Item 6.



 
 

11 
 

Schedule I 
Design Guidelines 

 
[See attached] 

69

Item 6.



1 August 2018   Page 3
Front Facades

Front Facades are defined as residential elevations facing a street or park. 
Facades adjacent to a park with a wall or fence between the façade and park is 
not a front façade. Both street facing facades on corner lots are considered front 
facades and must be articulated; continue the siding material palette on both 
street-facing facades and incorporate architectural elements. The percentage of 
design elements, materials and detailing are not required to be consistent on both 
facades.

Streetscape Variety. The same elevation can be repeated no more than every 
fourth Lot. The same elevation cannot be placed on a Lot directly across the 
street or diagonal from any other plan with the same elevation. No elevations 
may be repeated on a cul-de-sac having less than six (6) Lots. No color palette 
may be repeated more than seven times on any block of more than 21 lots.

Variety of facade articulation. Front elevations shall have at least two different 
design features to break the wall plane. The following are examples of the types 
of design features that meet this requirement: 

•  Horizontal offsets, recesses or projections, breezeways, porte-cocheres, 
canopies, ornamental cornices, ornamental and bay windows, vertical 
“elevation” off-sets, peaked roof forms, arches, architectural details such as tile 
work or moldings integrated into the façade, integrated planters or wing walls, 
accent materials, varied roof heights, or similar design features 

Front Facades should create visual interest through horizontal and vertical 
articulation of the building elevation. A variety of textured surfaces and natural 
materials may be used, particularly at the pedestrian eye-level, with windows 
and entrances that face the street. Blank walls should be minimized.

70

Item 6.



1 August 2018   Page 4
Front Entries

On lots less than 55’ in frontage, 
entries must be one-story scaled 
entries and either recessed or 
covered with a porch, canopy, or 
other shading device. A variety of 
front door types is required.  

Articulated use of details and 
accent materials should be used 
at building entries to emphasize 
human-scale. Building entrances 
may be marked by porch elements, 
trellises, canopies, awnings or 
special roof treatments. Oversized 
and grandiose archways are 
discouraged.

71

Item 6.



  Page 51 August 2018
Exteriors of Residential Buildings

Materials. Exterior surface area (all stories) may consist 
of ledge stone, fieldstone, cast stone, cementious-fiber 
planking and board and batten (not panels), painted or 
tinted stucco and brick. Solid wood planking, decorative 
cementious-fiber panels, galvanized metal and other 
durable materials may be used for accent features. The 
minimum front facade masonry is 30%, masonry must 
be stone, brick or stucco. 
 
Detailing. Design elements and detailing, including 
the presence of windows and window treatments, trim 
detailing and exterior wall materials should be continued 
around the primary building; the percentage of design 
elements, materials and detailing may vary from façade 
to façade to encourage architectural variety and are not 
required to be consistent.

Residential buildings that back up to a collector street or 
higher street category shall be limited to one-story height 
to minimize the visual impact of rear facades being 
prominently viewed by the public.

72

Item 6.



1 August 2018   Page 6
Front-loaded Garage - Living Area Forward

A garage door recessed from the face of the front 
façade that emphasizes the living area of the home 
from the street is a permitted garage type. 

73

Item 6.



1 August 2018   Page 7
Front-loaded Garage - Flush with Facade

Garage doors flush with the street-
facing façade require design features 
on the façade that de-emphasizes the 
visual impact of the garage. At least 
one of the following is required on a 
flush garage:

•  Integrated trim or banding around 
the garage door that matches the 
residential building

•  Garage door relief detailing; 
windows are a preferred element

•  An overhead eave or porte-cochere 
extended above the face of the 
garage door in front of the garage 
door face

•  Decorative hardware such as 
hinges, handles, etc.

74

Item 6.



1 August 2018   Page 8
Front-loaded Garage - Projecting

Garages projecting in front of the street 
facing building façade may protrude in 
front of the building provided that design 
features are provided on all exposed 
garage facades to de-emphasize the 
visual impact of the garage. A projecting 
garage may be side loaded (garage 
doors perpendicular to the street). Some 
combination of the following is required 
on a projecting garage:

•  Extend and integrate the building 
siding materials on the garage façades 

•  Integrated trim or banding around the 
garage door that matches the residential 
building

•  Garage door windows

•  Single garage doors

•  An architectural roof above the garage, 
such as a gabled roof

75

Item 6.



1 August 2018   Page 9
Garage Door Articulation

Stain or paint colors for garage doors 
shall be compatible with the color 
palette of the building façade siding 
or trim of the home to deemphasize 
the garage door and emphasize the 
architectural building façade. Detailing 
and articulation of the garage doors is 
required.

General. Individual or two-car garage 
doors are permitted. The use of three 
garage doors is permitted provided at 
least one of the doors is offset two feet 
from the other doors. The driveway 
width at the curb line may be no wider 
than 17’ or the width of a 2-door 
garage.

76

Item 6.



1 August 2018   Page 10
Roofs and Overhead Structures

Simple roof lines are encouraged and can be achieved by 
including hips, gables, projections (e.g. dormers) and roof 
form changes in keeping with a selected architectural style. 
On buildings with pitched roofs, the minimum main roof pitch 
is 5:12. Lower roof pitches are acceptable on porch elements, 
awnings or architectural feature elements.  

Pitched roofs shall be clad in 25-year minimum composition 
shingles or low reflectivity coated metal roofing materials. The 
materials and colors of canopies, awnings and trellises should 
be compatible with the roof materials and complement and 
harmonize with the exterior design of the building.

An overhead eave or porte-cochere may extend above the 
face of the garage door in front of the garage door face. The 
overhead eave or the porte-cochere may extend five feet into the 
building setback line.

77

Item 6.



1 August 2018   Page 11
Medium Density Residential

MeDiuM Density ResiDentiAl

All guidelines set forth in in these Design Guidelines apply to this 
housing type. In addition, the following apply to Medium Density 
Residential buildings and site design:

Architectural style
A variety of quality and durable residential buildings within 
a condominium lot or small lot site must include a variety of 
architectural features and colors to establish an appealing streetscape 
character.

Form and mass
A single, large building mass should be avoided.  Building designs 
should incorporate visually heavier and more massive elements, details 
or colors at the building base, and visually lighter elements, details or 
colors above the base. Groups of buildings must have variety of colors.  
Four-flat and Mansion Home buildings are permitted. 

long walls and facades
Up to six attached dwellings may be attached in a single row as a 
group.

Windows and transparency
All walls and elevations on all floors of attached residential buildings 
must include windows or doors with glass, except as appropriate to 
assure privacy for adjacent residents.  

78

Item 6.



1 August 2018   Page 12
Medium Density Residential

Building roofs
On buildings with pitched roofs, the minimum roof pitch is 6:12 on 
the main structure. On buildings where flat roofs are the predominant 
roof type, parapet walls should be provided.  

Mechanical equipment screening
Rooftop mechanical equipment must be hidden or screened with 
architecturally integral elements at least as high as the equipment to 
be screened.  Makeshift equipment screens, such as wooden or plastic 
fences, are prohibited. Ground mounted mechanical equipment must 
be hidden or screened with architecturally integral wing walls and/
or landscaping.Mechanical equipment must be located where their 
acoustics will minimize disruption to abutting residential dwelling 
units.

Solar panels and rain collection devices are exempt from mechanical 
equipment screening standards.

79

Item 6.



  Page 131 August 2018
Common Open Space

The PUD shall provide for a collection of privately owned, common open space lots set within 
the PUD and made available for residential use. Common open space will be designed to (i) serve 
the recreational needs of the residents (ii) provide places and opportunities for interaction within 
the community and (iii) provide opportunities for interaction with the natural environment.

All private open space and structures thereon shall be conveyed to and permanently owned and 
maintained by a Home Owner Association (HOA) or other responsible entity.  The HOA may 
adopt rules and regulations regarding access, permitted uses, security (policing) and maintenance 
responsibilities for the open spaces.

Any lot designated as common open space shall consist of at least six thousand (6,000) square 
feet.  The area of the common open space lot shall be measured and calculated to the property 
line of the lot.

Parking for common open space uses within the PUD may be provided with adjacent on-street 
parking.  Off-street parking may also be provided within a common open space lot, at the option 
of the Developer.  

80

Item 6.



1 August 2018   Page 14
Design Review and Enforcement

A Master Homeowner Association shall be created and maintained for the community, 
empowered to govern and establish design guidelines, review architectural and landscape 
designs and enforce regulations and design guidelines. These regulations and guidelines 
will provide practical design direction which will create a special residential community 
environment that is consistent with these architectural design guidelines. 

Each new residential unit in Manor Heights will be subject to design criteria that will be 
detailed in design guidelines as referenced in the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, 
and Restrictions (CCRs) to be established by Owner and enforced by the Architectural 
Review Committee (ARC) which will be created pursuant to the CCRs.  

House plans submitted to The City shall be stamped or indicated by letter of transmittal (or 
similar language) that architectural review committee (ARC) has reviewed and approved 
the house plans as complying with the PUD Design Requirements for City Review. 

81

Item 6.



  AGENDA ITEM NO.  

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: October 21, 2020 
PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Assistant Development Services Director 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion and possible action on an ordinance rezoning 24.81 acres, more or less, out of the 
Sumner Bacon Survey No. 62, Travis County, Texas, and being located at 9910 Hill Lane, Manor, TX from Light 
Commercial (C-1) to Multi-Family 15 (MF-1). 
Applicant: Kimley-Horn & Associates 
Owner: 9 Sunny Partners, LP 
 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

This property is located mid-way along Hill Lane and is the last property on that road in the city limits. Past this 
property is Austin’s ETJ and Manor Downs. This property is currently zoned C-1 Light Commercial but due to its 
location there is likely to be very little pass-by traffic to support the retail uses permitted in C-1, so destination or 
residential uses are more suitable. 

The Planning and Zoning Commission voted 4-1 to recommend approval.  
 

LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not Applicable 
PRESENTATION:  No 
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes  

• Ordinance 
• Letter of Intent 
• Rezoning Map 
• Thoroughfare Plan of area 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the City staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve the first reading of an ordinance rezoning 
request for 24.81 acres, more or less, out of the Sumner Bacon Survey No. 62, Travis County, Texas, and being 
located at 9910 Hill Lane, Manor, TX from Light Commercial (C-1) to Multi-Family 15 (MF-1). 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

X Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

82

Item 7.



 ORDINANCE NO. _______        
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 

ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING A PARCEL OF LAND FROM 
LIGHT COMMERCIAL (C-1) TO MULTI-FAMILY 15 (MF-1); MAKING 
FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 Whereas, the owner of the property described hereinafter (the "Property") has requested that 
the Property be rezoned;  

 Whereas, after giving ten days written notice to the owners of land within three hundred feet 
of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the proposed rezoning 
and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 

   Whereas, after publishing notice of the public at least fifteen days prior to the date of such 
hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances of the 
Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to warrant a 
change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MANOR, TEXAS, THAT: 

 Section 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are 
hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 

 Section 2. Amendment of Ordinance.  City of Manor Code of Ordinances Chapter 14 
Zoning Ordinance ("Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and amended by rezoning the 
Property as set forth in Section 3. 

 Section 3. Rezoned Property.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the 
zoning district for the land and parcel of property described in Exhibit “A” (the “Property”), from the 
current zoning district Light Commercial (C-1) to zoning district Multi-Family 15 (MF-1).  The 
Property is accordingly hereby rezoned to Multi-Family 15 (MF-1). 

 Section 4. Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting 
at which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Texas Gov't. Code. 

PASSED AND APPROVED FIRST READING on this the 21st day of October 2020. 

PASSED AND APPROVED SECOND AND FINAL READING on this the ___ day of November 
2020. 

THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS  
 
       ____________________________  
       Dr. Larry Wallace Jr.,  

Mayor  
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC 
City Secretary  

 
 

83

Item 7.



  

ORDINANCE NO.  Page 2 
 

 

 
 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

 
Property Address: 

9910 Hill Lane, Manor, Texas 78653 
 

Property Legal Description: 
 

Field notes for 24.811 acres, more or less, of land out of the Sumner Bacon Survey 
No. 62, Travis County, Texas, called 24.81 acres by deed to Fred Akers recorded in 
Document No. 2004002724, Travis County Official Public Records, said 24.811 acres 
being described by metes and bounds as follows: 
 

Metes and Bounds:  
 

BEGINNING at a ½” steel pin found at a fence corner at the northwest corner of said 24.81, also 
the northwest corner of a 25.08 acre tract conveyed to Manor Downs by deed recorded in Volume 
10884, Page 862, Travis County Deed Records, also the southwest corner of a 65.00 acre tract 
conveyed to Manor I.S.D. by deed recorded in Document No. 200144922, Travis County Official 
Public Records, for the northwest corner thereof; 
 
THENCE with the south line of said 65.00 acres and the north line of said 24.81 acres, generally 
following a fence, these 2 courses:  

1. S69o 02’ 19” E 808.00 feet to a ½” steel pin found for angle point,  
2. S67o 28’ 33” E 11.21 feet toa ½” steel pin found 1.8 feet west of a side fence, at the 

northwest corner of a 24.783 acre tract conveyed to John McCarthy by deed recorded in 
Volume 13327, Page 702, Travis County Deed Records and the northeast corner of said 
24.81 acres, for the northeast corner thereof; 

 
THENCE S30o 15’ 00” W 1393.05 feet with the west line of said 24.783 acres and the east line of 
said 24.81 acres, generally following a fence, to a ½” steel pin near the end of the fence, in the 
north ROW line of Hill Lane, for the southeast corner thereof; 
 
THENCE with the north ROW line of Hill Lane the following 2 courses:  

1. N56o 47’ 09” W 2.46 feet to a ½” steel pin found for an angle point,  
2. N60o 04’ 35” W 815.50 feet to a ½” steel pin found near the end of a fence, at the 

southeast corner of said 25.08 acres and the southwest corner of said 24.81 acres, for the 
southwest corner thereof; 

 
THENCE N30o 40’ 37” E 1265.65 feet with the east line of said 25.08 acres and the west line of 
said 24.81 acres, generally following a fence, to the POINT OF BEGINNING, containing 24.811 
acres of lane, more or less.  

84

Item 7.



85

Item 7.



HILL LN

GR
EG

G 
MA

NO
R 

RD

US HWY 290

Zone
A - Agricultural
SF-1 - Single
Family
Suburban
SF-2 - Single
Family
Standard
MF-2 - Multi-
Family 25
MH-1 -
Manufactured
Home

I-1 -
Institutional
Small
I-2 -
Institutional
Large
GO - General
Office
C-1 - Light
Commercial
C-2 - Medium
Commercial

NB -
Neighborhood
Business
DB - Downtown
Business

IN-1 - Light
Industrial
IN-2 - Heavy
Industrial
PUD - Planned
Unit
Development
ETJ

¹
0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000

Feet

1 inch = 833 feet

Subject Property: 
9910 Hill Lane

P r o p o s e d  Z o n i n g :  P r o p o s e d  Z o n i n g :  
M u l t i - F a m i l y  1 5  ( M F - 1 )  M u l t i - F a m i l y  1 5  ( M F - 1 )  

C u r r e n t  Z o n i n g :  C u r r e n t  Z o n i n g :  
L i g h t  C o m m e r c i a l  ( C - 1 )L i g h t  C o m m e r c i a l  ( C - 1 )

86

Item 7.



 

87

Item 7.



  AGENDA ITEM NO.  

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: October 21, 2020 

PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Assistant Development Services Director 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action upon a Concept Plan for Presidential Glen Commercial 
Subdivision, three (3) lots on 5.4 acres, more or less, and being located at 13600 US Hwy 290 E., Manor, TX. 
Applicant: Kimley-Horn & Associates 
Owner: West Elgin Development Corporation  

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

This property is located at the intersection of US Hwy 290 and Paseo de Presidente at the 290 entrance to 
Presidential Glen. They are dividing the 5.4-acre commercial tract into 3 lots of 1.4 acres, 1.6 acres, and 2.4 
acres. This plan has been approved by our engineers.  

The Planning and Zoning Commission voted 5-0 to recommend approval.  
LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not Applicable 
PRESENTATION:  No 
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes  

• Concept Plan 
• Engineer Comments 
• Engineer Response 
• Conformance Letter 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
It is the City staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve a Concept Plan for Presidential Glen 
Commercial Subdivision, three (3) lots on 5.4 acres, more or less, and being located at 13600 US Hwy 290 E., 
Manor, TX. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: X Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

88

Item 8.



PR
ES

ID
EN

TI
AL

G
LE

N
C

O
M

M
ER

C
IA

L
©

C
O

N
C

EP
T

PL
AN

00 100' 200'

GRAPHIC SCALE 100'

BO
IS

D
AR

C
RD

HWY 290/ MANOR EXPY

VICINITY MAP
SCALE: 1"=2000'

PROJECT
LOCATION

CONCEPT PLAN BOUNDARY

PROPOSED LOT LINE

LEGEND

PROJECT NAME: PRESIDENTIAL GLEN COMMERCIAL PHASE 1

SITE ADDRESS: NW CORNER OF THE INTERSECTION OF HWY
290 AND PASEO DE PRESIDENTE BLVD

RECORD OWNER/DEVELOPER:
WEST ELGIN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
9900 HWY 290 EAST
MANOR, TX 78653

ENGINEER:
KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.
10814 JOLLYVILLE ROAD
BUILDING 4, SUITE 200
AUSTIN, TEXAS 78759
CONTACT: KEVIN J. BURKS, P.E.
PH. 512-418-1771

SURVEYOR:
KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.
601 NW LOOP 410
SUITE 350
SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS 78216
PH. 210-307-4356

WATERSHED STATUS
THIS SITE IS LOCATED IN THE
WILBARGER CREEK WATERSHED.

FLOODPLAIN INFORMATION:
NO PORTION OF THIS SITE LIES WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF
THE 100 YR. FLOODPLAIN AS SHOWN ON THE FLOOD
INSURANCE RATE MAP COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 48453CO485J,
DATED AUGUST 18, 2014.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
BEING LOT 1 OF BLOCK KK WITHIN PRESIDENTIAL GLEN
PHASE 1A, SITUATED IN TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS.

CURRENT ZONING:
C-2

PREPARED ON:
JUNE 29, 2020

LOT # ACRES LUES
1 1.4 11
2 1.6 18
3 2.4 28

LUE BREAKDOWN

820 26,000 2,406 165 201
934 8,000 3,768 322 261

6,174 487 462

TRAFFIC VOLUMES

Land Use ITE Land
Use Code Size Units Daily

Trips AM Trips PM Trips

Shopping Center Sq Ft
Fast-Food Restaurant w/ D.T. Sq Ft

Total Project Trips

TRAFFIC

UTILITY DEMAND (LIVING UNIT EQUIVALENT)

LAND USE AND PHASING

89

Item 8.



Date: Tuesday, August 4, 2020

Kevin Burks

    
kevin.burks@kimley-horn.com

Permit Number 2020-P-1258-CP
Job Address: Presidential Glen Commercial Lot 1 Concept Plan, Manor, TX. 78653

Dear Kevin Burks,

The first submittal of the Presidential Glen Commercial Lot 1 Concept Plan (Concept Plan) submitted by  and received 
on August 25, 2020, have been reviewed for compliance with the City of Manor Subdivision Ordinance 263B. 

Engineer Review
The review of the submittal package has resulted in the following comments. Should you have any questions or require 
additional information regarding any of these comments, please contact Pauline Gray, P.E. by telephone at (512) 259-
3882 or by email at pgray@jaeco.net.

1.  Proposed major categories of land use by acreage showing compatibility of land use with the Master Plan as 
required by City of Manor Code of Ordinances Chapter 10, Section 10.02 Exhibit A Subdivision 
Ordinance 263B Section 21(c)(7). 

2.  Significant drainage features and structures including any regulatory one hundred (100) year flood plains 
should be shown on the Concept Plan as required by City of Manor Code of Ordinances Chapter 10, Section 
10.02 Exhibit A Subdivision Ordinance 263B Section 21(c)(11).

3.  Significant features on or within two hundred (200) feet of the property, such as railroads, roads, buildings, 
utilities and drainage structures should be shown o the Concept Plan as required by City of Manor Code of 
Ordinances Chapter 10, Section 10.02 Exhibit A Subdivision Ordinance 263B Section 21(c)(12).

4.  The approximate boundaries and anticipated timing of proposed phases of development and uses should be 
shown on the Concept Plan as required by City of Manor Code of Ordinances Chapter 10, Section 10.02 
Exhibit A Subdivision Ordinance 263B Section 21(c)(13).

5.  A proposed phasing plan for the development should be shown on the Concept Plan as required by City of 
Manor Code of Ordinances Chapter 10, Section 10.02 Exhibit A Subdivision Ordinance 263B Section 
21(c)(16).

90

Item 8.



Please revise the project plans to address the comments noted above.  Following revision, please upload one full set of 
the revised drawings in PDF format.  Please include a comment response narrative indicating how comments have been 
addressed with your plan resubmittal. To access your project online, please go to www.mygovernmentonline.org and use 
the online portal to upload your drawings in PDF format.

Additional comments may be generated as requested information is provided. Review of this submittal does not 
constitute verification that all data, information and calculations supplied by the applicant are accurate, complete, or 
adequate for the intended purpose.  The engineer of record is solely responsible for the completeness, accuracy, and 
adequacy of his/her submittal, whether or not City Engineers review the application for Ordinance compliance. 

Thank you,

Pauline Gray, P.E.
Senior Engineer
Jay Engineering, a Division of GBA

8/4/2020 10:41:41 AM
Presidential Glen Commercial Lot 1 Concept Plan
2020-P-1258-CP
Page 2

91

Item 8.



     KHA Project No. 069275306 

kimley-horn.com 10814 Jollyville Road, Building 4, Suite 200, Austin, Texas 78759 512 418 1771 

 

August 24, 2020 

Pauline Gray, P.E. 
Jay Engineering Company, Inc. 
P.O. Box 1220 
Leander, TX 78646 

RE:  Presidential Glen Commercial Lot 1 Concept Plan 
 Second Submittal 

Permit Number 2020-P-1258-CP 
  
 
Dear Pauline: 

 
Please accept this Comment Response Letter in reply to the City of  Austin’s review of  plans for 
the above referenced project, dated August 4, 2020.  Original comments have been included for 
reference.  All Kimley-Horn responses are listed in blue.  

 
1.  Proposed major categories of land use by acreage showing compatibility of land use with the 
Master Plan as required by City of  Manor Code of  Ordinances Chapter 10, Section 10.02 Exhibit  
A Subdivision Ordinance 263B Section 21(c)(7).  
Response: A table indicating zoning and land use acreage that shows compatibility with 
the Master Plan has been added to the concept plan.  
 
2.  Signif icant drainage features and structures including any regulatory one hundred (100) year 
f lood plains should be shown on the Concept Plan as required by City of  Manor Code of  
Ordinances Chapter 10, Section 10.02 Exhibit A Subdivision Ordinance 263B Section 21(c)(11).  

Response: No regulatory one hundred-year floodplains are present on or adjacent to the 
site of development and a note indicating such is on the left side of the concept plan. All 
drainage features and structures have been indicated on the concept plan.    

 
3.  Signif icant features on or within two hundred (200) feet of  the property, such as railroads, 
roads, buildings, utilities and drainage structures should be shown o n the Concept Plan as 
required by City of  Manor Code of  Ordinances Chapter 10, Section 10.02 Exhibit A Subdivision 
Ordinance 263B Section 21(c)(12). 
Response: Significant features, including roads, buildings, utilities, and drainage 
structures, have now been indicated on the concept plan. 
 
4.  The approximate boundaries and anticipated timing of proposed phases of development and 
uses should be shown on the Concept Plan as required by City of  Manor Code of  Ordinances 
Chapter 10, Section 10.02 Exhibit A Subdivision Ordinance 263B Section 21(c)(13). 

Response: The phases, phase boundaries, and timeline has been indicated in a table on 
the left side of the concept plan. 
 
5.  A proposed phasing plan for the development should be shown on the Concept Plan as  
required by City of  Manor Code of  Ordinances Chapter 10, Section 10.02 Exhibit A Subdivision 
Ordinance 263B Section 21(c)(16). 

92

Item 8.



Page 2 

 

kimley-horn.com 10814 Jollyville Road, Building 4, Suite 300, Austin, Texas 78759 512 418 1771 

 

Response: Proposed phasing is now shown and indicated on the concept plan in table 
form on the left side. 
 
 
Should you have questions or require additional information, please feel free to contact me.  

Sincerely,  

KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 

 

Kevin Burks, P.E.  

Project Manager 

512-418-4528 

Kevin.burks@kimley-horn.com 

 

93

Item 8.



Date: Monday, September 14, 2020

Kevin Burks

    
kevin.burks@kimley-horn.com

Permit Number 2020-P-1258-CP
Job Address: Presidential Glen Commercial Lot 1 Concept Plan, Manor 78653

Dear Kevin Burks,

We have conducted a review of the concept plan for the above-referenced project, submitted by 
Kevin Burks and received by our office on August 25, 2020, for conformance with the City of Manor 
Code of Ordinances Chapter 10, Section 10.02 Exhibit A Subdivision Ordinance 263B.  The Plans 
appear to be in general compliance with City Ordinance requirements and we therefore take no 
exception to their approval as presented. 

Please submit a hard copy of the Concept Plan to Scott Dunlop at the City of Manor for 
signatures.  A copy of the signed Concept Plan will be uploaded under project files on the my 
permit now website.

Review of this submittal does not constitute verification that all data, information and calculations 
supplied by the applicant are accurate, complete or adequate for the intended purpose. The 
engineer of record is solely responsible for the completeness, accuracy and adequacy of his/her 
submittal, whether or not City Engineers review the application for Ordinance compliance. Please 
call if you have any questions or need additional information.

Sincerely,

Pauline Gray, P.E.
Senior Engineer
Jay Engineering, a Division of GBA

94

Item 8.



9/14/2020 9:53:25 AM
Presidential Glen Commercial Lot 1 Concept Plan
2020-P-1258-CP
Page 2

95

Item 8.



  AGENDA ITEM NO.  

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: October 21, 2020 

PREPARED BY: Thomas Bolt, City Manager 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action to waive Chapter 10, Exhibit A, Article II, Section 22(d)(1)(i) to 
waive payment of all applicable application fees for Shadowview Commercial Section 3 Preliminary Plans project 
number 2020-P-1271-PP. 
Applicant: Kimley-Horn & Associates 
Owner: Shadowglen Development Corporation 
 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

This project is the Hill Lane extension. The previously submitted plans were approved for 2 years, then extended 
for a year, then since no work commenced on the project the plans expired. The developer has since refiled the 
plans and has requested the fees be waive since they were paid under the original submittal. The application fee 
for this project is $1,890.00. They will likely be seeking fee waivers for the construction plans and final plat when 
those are submitted. 
 

LEGAL REVIEW: No 
FISCAL IMPACT: No 
PRESENTATION:  No 
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes  

• Fee Waiver Request 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION:  Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

96

Item 9.



kimley-horn.com 10814 Jollyville Road, Avallon IV, Suite 200, Austin, TX 78759 512 418 1771
https://kimleyhorn-my.sharepoint.com/personal/brett_burke_kimley-horn_com/Documents/Las Entradas North/20201008
Shadowview Section 3 - Preliminary Plat Fee Delay Letter.docx

October 8, 2020

Scott Dunlop
Development Services Assistant Director
City of Manor

RE: Shadowview Section 3 – Preliminary Plat Submittal Fee

Mr. Dunlop,

As discussed, Thursday October 1st with staff and developer team, the Preliminary Plat for the above
referenced project was submitted Friday September 25th.  A submittal invoice was provided
Wednesday September 25th in the amount of $1,890.

Considering the developer has requested an agenda item with City Council to waive submittal fees for
this project due to fees being paid prior to expiration of subdivision application we formally request the
Preliminary Plat application to start without application fee payment till a decision by City Council.
The developer understands that a staff recommendation letter will not be provided till this item is
resolved.

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions or concerns.

Sincerely,

Brett Burke.
Project Manager

97

Item 9.



  AGENDA ITEM NO.  

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: October 21, 2020 
PREPARED BY: Samuel D. Kiger, P.E. 
DEPARTMENT: City Engineer 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve the Purchase Contract with Chau Dinh and Anh Kim 
Pham for a wastewater easement with temporary construction easement. 

 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

The 25’ wastewater easement and 25’ temporary construction easement are required for the construction of 
the Cottonwood Creek Wastewater Collection Line. The City is agreeing to $9,750 monetary compensation for 
the easements. 

The expenditure for the purchase contract is within the recommended offers established based on the Travis 
County Appraisal District property values. 

 
LEGAL REVIEW: Completed 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No, Costs are covered by the developer per the terms of the DA 
PRESENTATION:  No 
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes 

• Purchase Contract 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the City Staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve the purchase contract with Chau Dinh and 
Anh Kim Pham for a wastewater easement with temporary construction easement. 

 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION:  Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

98

Item 10.



99

Item 10.



100

Item 10.



101

Item 10.



102

Item 10.



103

Item 10.



104

Item 10.



105

Item 10.



106

Item 10.



107

Item 10.



  AGENDA ITEM NO.  

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: October 21, 2020 
PREPARED BY: Samuel D. Kiger, P.E. 
DEPARTMENT: City Engineer 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve the Purchase Contract with John Gebauer Jr. and 
Patricia A. Gebauer for a special warranty deed with temporary construction easement. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

The property will be used as right-of-way needed for the widening of Old Kimbro Road. The City is agreeing to 
$4,039 monetary compensation for the fee simple and temporary easement. 

The expenditure is based on an actual appraisal prepared for the City by a third party. 

LEGAL REVIEW: Completed 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No, Costs are covered by the developer per the terms of the DA 
PRESENTATION:  No 
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes 

• Purchase Contract 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the City Staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve the purchase contract with John Gebauer 
Jr. and Patricia A. Gebauer for a special warranty deed with temporary construction easement. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION:  Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

108

Item 11.



109

Item 11.



110

Item 11.



111

Item 11.



112

Item 11.



113

Item 11.



114

Item 11.



115

Item 11.



116

Item 11.



117

Item 11.



118

Item 11.



119

Item 11.



120

Item 11.



121

Item 11.



122

Item 11.



    

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: October 21, 2020 

PREPARED BY: Ryan Phipps, Chief of Police 

DEPARTMENT: Police 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the appointment of a Chairperson to the Public Safety 
Committee. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

At the August 19, 2020, Regular Council Meeting, Council approved and established the Public Safety 
Committee.   

The Public Safety Committee Members consists of the Mayor, Chief of Police, City Manager and two (2) council 
members.  At the same meeting, City Council appointed Council Member Emily Hill and Council Member Dr. 
Harvey to serve a one-year term.  

The Public Safety Committee had their first meeting on October 21st and made nominations for Chairperson.  

LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable 

FISCAL IMPACT: Not Applicable 

PRESENTATION:  No 
ATTACHMENTS:  No  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the City Staff’s recommendation that the City Council appoint a Chairperson to the Public Safety Committee 
to serve a one-year term.     

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION:  Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

123

Item 12.



 

  AGENDA ITEM NO.  

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE:  October 21, 2020 

PREPARED BY: Dr. Larry Wallace Jr., Mayor 

DEPARTMENT: City Council 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Resolution in support of the National League of Cities City 
Innovation Ecosystem (CIE) Program. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

 
 

LEGAL REVIEW:   Yes 

FISCAL IMPACT:  No 

PRESENTATION:   No 

ATTACHMENTS:   Yes 

• Resolution No. 2020-12 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is City staff’s recommendation the City Council approve Resolution No. 2020-12 in support of the National 
League of Cities City Innovation Ecosystem (CIE) Program. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

124

Item 13.



  

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-12 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MANOR, TEXAS, IN SUPPORT OF THE NATIONAL 
LEAGUE OF CITIES CITY INNOVATION ECOSYSTEM 
(CIE) PROGRAM. 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Manor (the “City Council”) desires to work on 
local efforts to assist entrepreneurs with access to information, practices and technical programs to 
establish successful small businesses in order to promote better affordable services for the benefit of 
the residents of the City of Manor (the “City”); and 

WHEREAS, the National League of Cities through the establishment of the City Innovation 
Ecosystem (CIE) Program assists participating cities to reach their goals by providing technical 
assistance, seed funding and peer learning through its partnership with CivStart and mySidewalk; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it is in the best interest of the City to support 
the National League of Cities CIE Program and strive to assist its local entrepreneurs with the 
necessary tools to thrive during this time of economic uncertainty. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MANOR, THAT: 

SECTION 1. The City Council hereby approves the recitals contained in the preamble of this 
Resolution and finds that all the recitals are true and correct and incorporate the same in the body of 
this Resolution as findings of fact. 

SECTION 2. The City Council hereby indicates its commitment to advocate for entrepreneurs 
by participating in the National League of Cities City Innovation Ecosystem (CIE) Program.   

SECTION 3. Through the CIE Program, the City Council commits to participate in creating 
policies, program, and practices to ensure the City can thrive in the global, innovation-driven 
economy. 

SECTION 4. If any section, article, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or word in this 
resolution or application thereof to any persons or circumstances is held invalid or unconstitutional 
by a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this resolution; and the City Council hereby declares it would have passed such 
remaining portions of the resolution despite such invalidity, which remaining portions shall remain 
in full force and effect. 

  

125

Item 13.



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-12 Page 2 
 

 2 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of Manor, Texas, at a regular meeting on the 
21st day of October 2020, at which a quorum was present, and for which due notice was given pursuant 
to Government Code, Chapter 551. 

 

       __________________________________ 
    Dr. Larry Wallace Jr., Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary 
City of Manor, Texas 
 
 

126

Item 13.



 
 

Cover Letter: 
 
 
 

Mayors Commitment to the National League of Cities City Innovation 
Ecosystem Program News Release Template 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date 
 
 
Hello City, 
 
In order to increase awareness of Mayor Name’s commitment on behalf of your city to the National 
League of Cities City Innovation Ecosystem (CIE) Program, we are providing this news release 
template for you to use in your media relations efforts. You may customize this template by filling in 
the yellow highlighted sections with your local information and distribute after the Commitments & 
Closing Ceremony at the Mayors Conference ends at 2 p.m. CDT. 
  
Included, is the Mayorship 2020 Initiatives document. This lists all of the 11 initiatives. Copy and 
paste, or customize as you wish, the one initiative your city chose as part of this program. In addition 
to the description is the name of the program expert providing technical assistance. 
  
Thank you for your city’s participation, and for helping grow sustainable communities through 
entrepreneurship. 
 
Mayors Conference on Entrepreneurship Team 

  

127

Item 13.



 
 
 
 
 
NEWS RELEASE 
 
For Immediate Release 
 

Media Contact: 
Name 
Organization 
Email Address 
Phone number 
 

Mayor Name Commits to Advocate for Entrepreneurs in National Ceremony 
 

City, State, Date – On Friday, September 18th, City Mayor Name made a formal commitment to the 
National League of Cities City Innovation Ecosystem (CIE) Program at the conclusion of the 9th 
annual Mayors Conference on Entrepreneurship, a virtual conference held Sept. 17-18 by the Ewing 
Marion Kauffman Foundation in Kansas City, Mo. The CIE program asks city leaders to commit to 
creating the right policies, program, and practices to ensure their communities can thrive in the global, 
innovation-driven economy. It helps participating cities reach their goals by providing technical 
assistance, seed funding, and peer learning.  

Each city’s commitment is to one program, policy, or practice categorized under the four pillars of 
America’s New Business Plan ( https://www.startusupnow.org/). These include opportunity, funding, 
knowledge, and support.  

City choose an initiative under the insert pillar name category. use description in the Mayorship 2020 
Initiatives document. City will receive year-long technical assistance from insert program expert 
located in the Mayorship 2020 Initiatives document, who will work closely with the city to develop and 
launch the project.    

mySidewalk, which uses place-based tools to track local data, will provide each civic leader with a 
customized Economy & Entrepreneurship Dashboard. These data-driven dashboards provide mayors 
with a shared set of indicators to help assess: entrepreneurship in their community, drivers of 
innovation in their community, the livability of their community, the degree to which their community 
supports diversity and inclusion, infrastructure which supports business operations, the health of their 
local economy, and the characteristics of the area's opportunity zones. 
 
“City is a great place for entrepreneurs to bring their business ideas to fruition,” said Mayor Name. 
“We want to make sure we provide the resources and support necessary for them to prosper, 
especially during this time of economic uncertainty.” 
 

- More – 
 
 
  

PLACE LOCAL CITY 
GOVERNMENT LOGO 
HERE. 

128

Item 13.

https://www.startusupnow.org/


Mayors Conference on Entrepreneurship 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
“You cannot undervalue the importance of a solid and connected ecosystem to support 
entrepreneurs,” said Philip Gaskin, vice president, Entrepreneurship at the Ewing Marion Kauffman 
Foundation. “We dedicate ourselves to providing the tools necessary to strengthen communities for 
entrepreneurs. In addition to advocating for funding, city leaders can help entrepreneurs gain access 
to education and the sharing of ideas and best practices to achieve success.” 
 
“This year’s Mayors Conference on Entrepreneurship was about marshalling resources to help 
mayors lay the groundwork to rebuild more robust and resilient local economies,” said Evan Absher, 
senior program officer at the Ewing Marion Kauffman Foundation. “We are working with the National 
League of Cities to provide the assistance and resources necessary for the entrepreneurial economic 
development and more inclusive prosperity.”  
 
Customize with appropriate entrepreneurship data for your area. 
 

### 
 

About the Kauffman Foundation 
The Ewing Marion Kauffman Foundation is a private, nonpartisan foundation that works together with 
communities in education and entrepreneurship to increase opportunities that allow all people to 
learn, to take risks, and to own their success. The Kauffman Foundation is based in Kansas City, 
Missouri, and uses its $2 billion in assets to collaboratively help people be self -sufficient, productive 
citizens. For more information, visit www.kauffman.org and connect with us at 
www.twitter.com/kauffmanfdn and www.facebook.com/kauffmanfdn. 
 
About National League of Cities 
The National League of Cities (NLC) is the voice of America’s cities, towns and villages, representing 
more than 200 million people. NLC works to strengthen local leadership, influence federal policy and 
drive innovative solutions. Its City Innovation Ecosystems program asks city leaders to commit to 
creating the right policies, program, and practices to ensure their communities can thrive in the global, 
innovation-driven economy, and it helps participating cities reach their goals by providing technical 
assistance, seed funding, and peer learning. 
 
About CivStart  
CivStart believes solving society’s biggest problems starts at the local level. Our mission is to build an 
honest and inclusive ecosystem of solutions that serve local governments and their communities. We 
bridge the gap between early stage companies and local governments, first by identifying cutting-
edge govtech and civic technology companies and then providing expert consulting while leveraging 
strategic partnerships with governments, established businesses, and investors for the benefit of all. 
The technologies that go through the CivStart program aren’t just made in a sterile lab, but have been 
made with guidance from government leaders to ensure that once in the wild, the technologies serve 
community needs, not the other way around. Learn more at CivStart.org.  
 
mySidewalk 
mySidewalk helps analysts in local government track key indicators, answer questions about city 
progress, and create reports and data dashboards that drive awareness and action. Its mission is to 
empower city leaders and the public with the most complete, clear, and real-time understanding of 
their community so they can improve and innovate together. 

129

Item 13.

http://www.kauffman.org/
http://www.twitter.com/kauffmanfdn
http://www.facebook.com/kauffmanfdn


 

  AGENDA ITEM NO.  

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE:  October 21, 2020 
PREPARED BY: Dr. Larry Wallace Jr., Mayor 
DEPARTMENT: City Council 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Resolution in support of Cities United violent prevention 
efforts.   
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 
 
Mission:  Cities United supports a national network of mayors who are committed to reducing the epidemic of homicides and 
shootings among young Black men and boy ages 14 to 24 by 50%. 
 

Mayors & Elected Officials:  Mayors and elected officials include city leaders in our 130 partner cities who have committed 
to creating safe, healthy and hopeful communities for Black men and boys and their families. 
 

CITY LEADS:  An individual designated by the mayor to work on initiatives involving the city's young Black men and boys 
and/or violence prevention efforts. They serve as the primary point of contact between Cities United and the city team. A 
City Lead works within local government and has a close or direct line of communication to the mayor and/or city manager. 
 

Young Leaders:  An individual between the ages of 18 and 24 years of age who has been directly impacted by violence in their 
community and is actively seeking to change the narrative of young Black men and boys. Individuals are currently working or 
interested in working to enhance and elevate youth and young adult voice throughout the policies, practices and programs 
within their city. 
 

Community Partners:  Individuals/Organizations working to impact young people and families affected by violence. 
Community partners implement direct service programs, advocate for policy change and/or build political and public will. 
Community partners represent group such as: Non-Profit Agencies, Faith Leaders, Local Philanthropic Partners, Activists, 
Grass Roots Organizations, Education and more. 
 

LEGAL REVIEW:   Yes 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No 
PRESENTATION:   No 
ATTACHMENTS:   Yes 

• Resolution No. 2020-13 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

City staff recommends City Council adopt and approve Resolution No. 2020-13 supporting Cities United violent 
prevention efforts. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

130

Item 14.



  

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-13 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MANOR, TEXAS, IN SUPPORT OF THE CITIES 
UNITED VIOLENT PREVENTION EFFORTS. 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Manor (the “City Council”) desires to work on 
local violent prevention efforts for the City of Manor (“City”); and   

WHEREAS, Cities United has established a network of partner cities who are committed to 
creating safe, healthy and hopeful communities for Black men and boys and their families and 
everyone; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it is in the best interest of the City to support 
and partner with Cities United to work on local violent prevention efforts that create a safe healthy 
nd hopeful community for the City’s residents and for Black men and boys and their families. the 
National League of Cities CIE Program and strive to assist its local entrepreneurs with the necessary 
tools to thrive during this time of economic uncertainty. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MANOR, THAT: 

SECTION 1. The City Council hereby approves the recitals contained in the preamble of this 
Resolution and finds that all the recitals are true and correct and incorporate the same in the body of 
this Resolution as findings of fact. 

SECTION 2. The City Council hereby indicates its commitment to work on local violent 
prevention efforts by partnering with Cities United and executes the Cities United Pledge attached as 
Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein as if fully set forth.   

SECTION 3. If any section, article, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or word in this 
resolution or application thereof to any persons or circumstances is held invalid or unconstitutional 
by a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this resolution; and the City Council hereby declares it would have passed such 
remaining portions of the resolution despite such invalidity, which remaining portions shall remain 
in full force and effect. 

  

131

Item 14.



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-13 Page 2 
 

 2 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of Manor, Texas, at a regular meeting on the 
21st day of October 2020, at which a quorum was present, and for which due notice was given pursuant 
to Government Code, Chapter 551. 

 

       __________________________________ 
    Dr. Larry Wallace Jr., Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary 
City of Manor, Texas 
 
 
  

132

Item 14.



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-13 Page 3 
 

 3 

Exhibit “A” 
 

 

133

Item 14.



 

  AGENDA ITEM NO.  

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE:  October 21, 2020 

PREPARED BY: Dr. Larry Wallace Jr., Mayor 

DEPARTMENT: City Council 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the appointment(s) of a City Council Member and/or City 
staff member to serve as the City of Manor Board Liaison to the Manor Chamber of Commerce.  

 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   Yes 

FISCAL IMPACT:  No 

PRESENTATION:   No 

ATTACHMENTS:   No 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is City staff’s recommendation that the City Council appoint a City Council Member and/or City staff 
member to serve as the City of Manor Board Liaison to the Manor Chamber of Commerce.  

PLANNING & ZONING 
COMMISSION: 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

134

Item 15.


	Top
	A.	Reports: Youth Justice Action Month Report
	a. Grant Loveless email

	1.	Public Hearing: 9910 Hill Lane Rezoning - 2020-P-1269-ZO
	a. Summary Form - Public Hearing 2020-P-1269-ZO
	b. 9910 Hill Lane MF1 Rezone Map 2020-P-1269-ZO
	c. 9910 Hill Lane notice 2020-P-1269-ZO
	d. 9910 Hill Lane Mailing Addresses 2020-P-1269-ZO

	2.	Public Hearing: Presidential Glen Commercial CP - 2020-P-1258-CP
	a. Summary Form - Public Hearing 2020-P-1258-CP
	b. Presidential Glen Commercial Concept Plan 2020-P-1258-CP
	c. Presidential Glen Commercial Notice Letter 2020-P-1258-CP
	d. Presidential Glen Mailing Labels 2020-P-1258-CP

	3.	Minutes: October 7, 2020 Regular Council Meeting Minutes
	a. Summary Form
	b. 2020 10 07 CC Draft Minutes

	4.	Monthly Reports: September 2020 Departmental Reports
	a. Summary Form
	b. PD
	c. DS
	d. CD
	e. CT
	f. PW
	g. FN

	5.	Engagement Letter for Litigation Services
	a. Summary Form -  Litigation Services

	6.	Manor Heights Second Amendment to Development Agreement
	a.  Summary Form -  Manor Heights Second DA Amendment
	b. 2nd Amend to Development Agreement

	7.	Ordinance: 9910 Hill Lane Rezoning 2020-P-1269-ZO
	a. Summary Form - 2020-P-1269-ZO
	b. 9910 Hill Lane Rezoning Ord.
	c. 9910 Hill Lane Letter of Intent 2020-P-1269-ZO
	d. 9910 Hill Lane MF1 Rezone Map 2020-P-1269-ZO
	e. 9910 Hill Lane Thoroughfare Plan 2020-P-1269-ZO

	8.	Presidential Glen Commercial CP - 2020-P-1258-CP
	a. Summary Form - 2020-P-1258-CP
	b. Presidential Glen Commercial Concept Plan 2020-P-1258-CP
	c. Engineer Comments 2020-P-1258-CP
	d. Engineer Comment Response 2020-P-1258-CP
	e. Conformance Letter 2020-P-1258-CP

	9.	Shadowview Section 3 Fee Waiver Request
	a. Summary Form - Shadowview Fee Waiver Request
	b. Shadowview Section 3 - Preliminary Plat Fee Delay Letter

	10.	Purchase Contract - Chau Dinh and Anh Kim Pham
	a. Summary Form - Chau Dinh
	b. Purchase Contract - Chau Dinh and Anh KIim Pham

	11.	Purchase Contract - John Gebauer Jr. and Patricia A. Gebauer
	a. Summary Form - Gebauer
	b. Purchase Contract Gebauer

	12.	Appointment of Chairperson to Public Safety Committee
	a. Summary Form

	13.	Resolution: National League of Cities City Innovation Ecosystem (CIE) Program Resolution No. 2020-12
	a. Summary Form - NLC
	b. Resolution 2020-12 City Innovation Ecosystem
	c. Reference - News Release Template

	14.	Resolution: Cities United Resolution No. 2020-13
	a. Summary Form - Cities United
	b. Resolution 2020-13 Cities United

	15.	Chamber Appointments: City of Manor Board Liaison to Manor Chamber of Commerce
	a. Summary Form - Chamber Appointments

	Bottom

